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To the Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

City of Auburn Hills, Michigan 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Auburn Hills, Michigan (the "City") as 
of and for the year ended December 31, 201 1, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City of Auburn Hills, Michigan's management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Auburn Hills, Michigan, as of December 31, 201 1 and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then 
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
management's discussion and analysis, retirement system and retiree healthcare trust schedules 
of funding progress, and the budgetary comparison schedules, as identified on Exhibits B and on 
pages 6- 12, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the 
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members 
of the City Council 

City of Auburn Hills, Michigan 

The introductory section is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit 
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Auburn Hills, Michigan's basic financial statements. The 
accompanying other supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, is presented 
for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. . . 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to  prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

As described in Note B, the City of Auburn Hills implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-type 
Definitions, during the year ended December 31, 201 1 .  As a result of this required 
implementation, several funds were combined into the General Fund and certain other funds 
were eliminated. In addition, fund balance classifications in the governmental fund financial 
statements have been changed to reflect the five new classifications under GASB Statement 
No. 54. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6

As the management of the City of Auburn Hills, we offer readers of the City's Financial Report with Supplemental Information, this

narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year ended December 31, 2011. We encourage

readers to consider the following information in conjunction with the information presented in the City’s financial statements.

The assets of the City of Auburn Hills exceeded liabilities at the close of the 2011 fiscal year by $174.1 million (net

assets). Of this amount, $117.2 million is the investment in capital assets (net of related debt), $3.5 million are assets

restricted for specific purposes and functions, while the remaining $53.5 million represents unrestricted net assets which

may be used to meet the demand for resources for the ongoing functions of the City.

The City’s total net assets decreased during 2011 by $2.5 million. The net assets of the governmental activities

decreased by $1.3 million, and the business-type activities experienced a decrease in net assets of $1.2 million. The net

assets decrease of $1.3 million in the governmental funds is $676,000 higher than the preceding year when the net assets

decreased by $607,000. The decline in the net assets of the business activities of $1.2 million in 2011 also represents a

reduction from the 2010 fiscal year when net assets increased by $305,000. 

At December 31, 2011, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $26.2 million, a decrease of

$813,000 from the December 31, 2010 fund balance of $27.0 million. The decrease is attributable to a $1.1 million

decline in the City's property tax revenues from $18.4 million in 2010 to $17.3 million in 2011. The City responded to the

expected decrease in tax revenues by reducing its operating expenses in governmental funds by approximately $1.9

million. Payroll and benefit costs contributed about $1.1 million to the cost savings with specific savings of $575,000

resulting from changes in the City's retirement programs. The City's transfers to other non-governmental funds increased

in 2011 by $293,000, and its SRF loan proceeds related to the two Storm Water Management projects decreased by

$640,000 from the prior year when the majority of the project work was completed.  

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the

two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether

the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during 2011. All changes in

net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash

flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., multi-year special assessments and other receivables not collected within sixty days of

the end of the 2011 fiscal year).

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Auburn Hills that are principally supported by 

taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a

significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of

the City of Auburn Hills include legislative, management and planning, public safety, streets, highways and public

improvements, recreation and culture, health, welfare, and community development, and general support. The business-

type activities of the City include the Water and Sewer Departments and Fieldstone Golf Club, a municipal golf course.

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Auburn Hills' basic financial statements.

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund

financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other required supplementary

information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers

with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The total long-term debt of the City at December 31, 2011 is $14,191,167 which represents a decrease of $1,072,521

from the prior year balance of $15,263,688. The decrease is attributable to principal payments of $2,013,602 in 2011 with

the 2009 Bond Series for the golf course ($1,230,000) and the Special Assessment debt for Brown Road ($600,000)

composing the majority of the principal payments. The City incurred additional debt in 2011 of $941,082. The new debt

related to the completion of the City's three SRF projects which increased debt by $233,645, and the City was assigned

additional debt of $707,437 for its pro-rata share of the Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drain project.   



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 

The government-wide financial statements include, not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also 
five legally separate component units for which the City is financially accountable. Financial information for these 
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found in Exhibits A-I and A-2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources -- 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Auburn Hills, like most other state and local 
governments. uses fund accountinq to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related leaal requirements and to 
comply with state and GASB (~overnment Accounting Standards Board) requirements for accounting. All 
of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietaryfunds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and oufflows of available resources, as 
well as on balances of resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such infomlation may be useful in evaluating a 
government's near-term ability to meet financial commitments. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to 
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the 
Citv's near-term financinq decisions. Both the aovernmental fund balance sheet and the aovernmental fund statement of - - - 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities (see Exhibits A-4 and A-6). 

The City of Auburn Hills maintains individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental 
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for 
the general fund, one special revenue fund, and one debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. 
Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation entitled "Other Non-Maior". . .. . 
Individual fund data For each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining fund financial 
statements which are presented on Exhibits C, D, and E. 

The City of Auburn Hills adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison 
Statement has been provided for the major governmental funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit A-3 and Exhibit A-5 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds. The City of Auburn Hills utilizes two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-tv~e activities in the qovernment-wide financial statements. The Citv . . 
uses enterprise funds to account for the Water and Sewer fund and the iieldstone Golf Club. Internal service funds are 
an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City 
utilizes internal service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and equipment and for the accounting of the City's retiree 
health benefit program. These functions have been allocated to governmental activities and business-type activities in 
the same proportion as the amount of services these functions provide to the activities. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the govemment-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer fund and Fieldstone Golf 
Club. Conversely, all intemal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund 
financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
shown on Exhibits F-I, F-2, and F-3. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits A-7. A-8, and A-9 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of these 
fund are not available to support the City of Auburn Hills' programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like 
that used for proprietary funds. The City's fiduciary funds are the Agency fund, the Pension Trust fund, and the Retiree 
Health Care Trust. 

The financial statements for the fiduciary funds are on Exhibit A-I0 and Exhibit A-I I of this report. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

Component Presentation. The government-wide financial statements include not only the financial information for 
the City of Auburn Hills (the primary government), but also five legally separate component units for which the City is 
financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial 
information presented for the primary government. 

The basic component unit financial statements can be found on Exhibit A-12 and Exhibit A-13 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be 
found on Exhibit A-14 of this report. 

Other Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementaly information concerning the City of Auburn Hills' progress in funding its obligation to provide 
pension benefits and retiree health care benefits to its emplovees which are shown on Exhibits B-1 and 8-2. Budgetary . . . . 
comparison schedules are also provided for all major governmental funds. This information can be found on Exhibit 8-3, 
Exhibit 8-4, and Exhibit 6-5 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analvsis 
As stated above, net assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of the City of Auburn Hills' financial position. 
Assets of the City of Auburn Hills exceeded liabilities by $174.1 million at December 31, 2011 which is $2.5 million lower 
than the prior year end. 

The net assets for the City of Auburn Hills are comprised of $3.5 million in assets which are restricted for specific 
programs and functions, $117.2 million of investment in capital assets (land, streets, water and sewer mains, etc.) net of 
any related debt that is still outstanding to purchase or construct these assets, and $53.5 million in unrestricted assets. 
The City utilizes the capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay the outstanding debt issued to purchase or construct these assets ($14.2 million) must be 
provided from other sources since the capital assets cannot be sold to liquidate the outstanding debt. 

A portion of the City's net assets. $3.5 million or 2.0% represents resources that are subject to restrictions on how they 
may be used. The remaining fund balance is composed of the unrestricted net assets in the amount of $53.5 million 
which may be used to meet the governments obligations to citizens and creditors 

At the end of 201 1, the City of Auburn Hills is able to report positive balances in both categories of net assets, for the City 
as a whole, and for the governmental and business-type activities. 

The City's governmental net assets decreased by $1.3 million or about 1.2% in 2011 while the business-type activities net 
assets declined by $1.2 million or 1.7%. The net assets in governmental funds decreased primarily as a result of a 
reduction in properly tax revenues during 201 1. 

The following is a summary of the statement of the City's net assets: 

Statement o f  Net Assets-Cilv o f  Auburn Hills 
(in Millions) 

Governmental Business-Type Total 
Activities ~ct iv i t ies Primaw Government 

201.1 - zolo - 201 1 - 2010 2011 zolo 
Current and Other Assets .................... 565.6 
Capital Assets ................................... 66.4 

Total Assets ............................. 132.0 

Long-Term Liabilities .......................... 3.8 
Other Liabilities ................................. 21.9 

Total Liabilities ......................... 25.7 

Net Assets: 
Invested in Capital Assets, 

Net of Related Debt ................ 63.0 
Restricted ................................ 3.4 
Unrestricted ............................. 39.8 

Total Net Assets. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

Governmental Activities. Governmental activities decreased the City of Auburn Hills' net assets $1.3 million. The key 
elements affecting this change are as follows: 

The net assets decrease of $1.3 million in the governmental funds is $676,000 higher than the preceding year when the 
net assets decreased by $607.000. While the City managed to realized an increase in its revenues of $529,000 from the 
prior year. its operating expenses and transfers to non-governmental funds increased by $1.2 million compared to the 
prior year. The largest change in the City's revenue categories was a decrease in tax revenues of $1.1 million attributable 
to reduced property tax values. This revenue decrease was offset by increases in special assessment revenue, 
franchise fees and cellular leases. and other revenues. 

The City of Auburn Hills spent a total of $1,011.771 on the purchase or construction of capital assets for governmental 
activities during 2011. In fund accounting methodologies, this amount is a use of current resources and a corresponding 
reduction in fund balance. GASB-34 provisions require that these assets be capitalized which results in no reduction in 
total assets. However, the costs of assets are allocated to the fiscal periods benefiting from their acquisition by recording 
depreciation expense. Recording depreciation expense reduced total assets by $3,173,739. 

The following is a summary of the changes in the City's net assets: 

Chanae in Net Assets-Citv of Auburn Hills 
(in Millions) 

Governmental Business-Tvoe Total *. 
Activities Activities Primarv Government 

2011 - 2010 - 2011 - 2010 - 201 1 - 2010 
Revenues 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for Services ....................... $2.1 $2.3 $12.0 $10.4 $14.1 $12.7 
O ~ e r a t i n ~  Grants and Contributions .... 1.5 1.4 0.0 0.0 1.5 1.4 - 
Capital Grants and Contributions ........ 0.1 0.0 0.6 1.4 0.7 1.4 
General Revenues: 
Taxes ........................................... 17.3 18.4 0.4 0.4 17.7 18.8 
State Shared Revenue ..................... 1.6 1.3 1.6 1.3 
Use of Money and Investments .......... 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.5 
Other Unrestricted Revenues ............. 3.2 1.7 -0.3 0.4 2.9 2.1 

Total Revenues ................... 26.0 25.5 12.8 12.7 38.8 38.2 

Expenses 
Legislative ................................ 
Management and Planning ................ 
Public Safety .................................. 
Streets, Highways, &Improvements .... 
Health Welfare &Community Dev ....... 
Recreation and Culture ..................... 
General Support .............................. 
Interest on Long-Term Debt ............... 
Water and Sewer ............................ 
Fieldstone Golf Club ..................... 

Total Expenses .................... 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 
before Transfen ............................ 0.3 0.6 -2.8 -0.9 -2.5 -0.3 

Transfers ...................................... -1.6 -1.2 1.6 1.2 0.0 0.0 

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ........ -$I .3 -$0.6 -$I .2 $0.3 -$2.5 40.3 

Business-Tvpe Activities. Business-type activities decreased the City of Auburn Hills' net assets approximately $1.2 
million. The key elements of the change are as follows: 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

Government-Wide Financial Analvsis fcontinued) 

The decrease in the net assets of the business activities of $1.2 million represents a decline of $1.5 million from the prior 
year when the net assets increased by $305.000. The major item contributing to the decline in net assets during 2011 
was the increase experienced in the operating expenses of the combined Water and Sewer fund of $2.1 million which was 
panlally offset by a $1 4 m on ncrease n h e  f ~ n d s  charges for sew ces In aoolrlon caplra grants an0 conlrb~lons 
oecllneo ov $733 000 or mar v oJe to ine v dual completion of the SRF San tan, Sower proect in 2010 wh ch resJlleo n 
the recognition of $853,000 in-revenues whereas in 201 1 only $33,000 was realized. otherrevenue categories for Water 
and Sewer fund also declined by $190,000 as compared to the prior year. 

The service charges of the Fieldstone Golf Course increased by $229.000 over the prior year which were partially offset 
by a decline in the fund's tax and other revenues by $62,000 and $30,000 respectively. 

The combined expenses of business activities increased by $2.0 million from $13.6 million in 2010 to $15.6 million in 
2011. While the golf fund's expenses were $51,000 lower than the preceding year, the expenses in the combined Water 
and Sewer fund increased by $2.1 million. Operating supplies and administrative expenses were less in 2011 by 
$140,000 and $150,000 respectively. However, the cost of water and sewage disposal purchases increased by almost 
$1.0 million and while depreciation and amortization expenses increased by approximately $1 3 million. 

Financial Analvsis of the Government's Funds 

As stated previously, the City of Auburn Hills uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- 
related legal requirements. 

Governmental w. The focus of the City of Auburn Hills' governmental funds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, oufflows. and balances of resources available. Such information is useful in assessing the CiNs financing 
requirements and ab~lity to meet financial demands as they occur. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a 
useful measure of the City's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the 2011 year-end. the City's governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $26.2 million which is 
$500,000 higher than the prior year fund balance. The combined fund balance is composed of $17.4 million of 
unassigned, $3.9 million of assigned, $3.0 million of committed, $1.5 million of restricted. and $300,000 of non spendable. 

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Auburn Hills. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund 
balance of the General fund is $24.4 million. The unassiuned portion of the fund balance represents 68.0% of total 
General fund expenditures and transfers for the 2011 fiscal ;ear.  h he fund balance of the City's General fund decreased 
by $566,000 or 2.3% in the 201 1 fiscal year. The primary item contributing to the fund balance decrease was the increase 
in General Fund transfers which increased by $775.000 from $1.7 million in 2010 to almost $2.5 million in 2011 

The fund balances in all other City governmental funds is $1.7 million as of December 31. 201 1; this balance represents a 
decrease of approximately $50,000 or 3.1% from the prior year. 

Pro~rietary m. The City of Auburn Hills' proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
business-type activities portion of the government-wide financial statements. 

Unrestricted net assets in the proprietary funds increased during 201 1 by $874,000 

The net assets in the Water and Sewer fund as of December 31, 2011 is $14,743,000 which is a modest $12,000 higher 
than the preceding fiscal year. The Water and Sewer fund's investment in capital assets net of related debt declined by 
almost $2.4 million in 2011 from the prior year. The unrestricted net assets of the Fieldstone Golf Club remains in a 
negative position of $1,626,000 as of December 31,201 1; however, the fund deficit was decreased during 201 1 by almost 
$861,000. This improvement is slightly higher than the amount projected on the City's deficit elimination plan for this 
fund. The City is projecting that the fund deficit in the golf fund will be eliminated by the end of the 2013 fiscal year. 

The Fieldstone Golf Club experienced an operating loss of $155,000. The nondperating activity of the fund included 
$316.000 of bond interest exoense which was offset bv $597.000 of non-operatinu revenues wnsistinu of DroDerty taxes . . - . .  . 
($354,000) and contractual bayment advances ($243,000). After considering ion-operating activity. the net income 
before transfers is $127.000. A transfer of $1,561,000 from the General fund resulted in the golf fund having an increase 
in net assets of $1,688,000 in 201 1. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

Budaetaw Hiuhliahts 

The City's total revenues for 2011 are $51.5 million which is favorable to the budget by $3.200.000. The Water and 
Sewer fund, had the most significant favorable revenue variance from budget ($1.9 million). Specific categories of 
revenues in the General fund having favorable revenues compared to the budget included tax revenues ($821,000). 
licenses and permits ($165.000), grant sources ($249,000), and other revenues ($600,000). The other revenues included 
$314.000 related to a new special assessment road project approved by the City Council after the 2011 had been 
adopted. The Brownfield Authority had the most significant unfavorable revenue variance from budget ($448,000) which 
was attributable to the expiration of four of the City's approved sites. 

The City's total expenses in 2011 of $50.5 million are under budget by $2.4 million. A significant portion of the favorable 
expense budget performance occurred in the City's TlFA A component unit fund which is under budget by $3.7 million as 
a result of the City having paid $300,000 thus far on a parking garage which had a budget of $4.2 million and is currently 
under construction and will be completed in 2012.. 

Total expenses for governmental funds were $30.0 million which was $309,000 over budget. The majority of the over 
budget amount was the result of a $262,000 expense recognized in the Downtown Parking fund where the entire fund 
balance was contributed toward the cost of the parking garage. 

The City's General fund, which composes the majority of the governmental fund activities, had expenditures, including 
transfen. of $12.7 million which exceeded its budaet bv $476.000: however, the General fund's expenditures included 
$928,000 of expenses related to the unbudgeted special assessment road project that will be reimbursed to the City in 
subseouent fiscal vears. The other oovernmental funds had exDenditures of $4.7 million and aside from the $262.000 ,~ ~ 

~ ~~ ~ 

contribution by the Downtown Parking fund were over budget colleitively by $26.000. 

The component unit funds composed of the TIFAs, Brownfield Authority, and the Economic Development fund had 
expenditures of $3.8 million as compared to a budget of $7.4 million. As noted above the entire favorable expense 
variance of $3.6 million is attributable to the TlFA A parking garage project which will not be completed until 2012. 

The proprietaly funds which include the consolidated activities of the Water and Sewer depaltments and the Fieldstone 
Golf Club operations had expenditures of $14.7 million which exceeded the collective expense budget of these two funds 
by $866.000. The Water and Sewer fund was over budget by $917.000 due to increased costs passed on to the City for 
water purchases ($619.000) and sewer disposal services ($459.000). The golf course's expenditures were under budget 
by $51,000. 

The budget comments above that refer to the General fund pertain to the actual revenues and expenditures shown on 
Exhibit 5. In order to meet the financial reporting requirements of GASB 54, the City consolidated six funds, formerly 
reported as separate revenue funds, into the General fund in the City's 2011 financial statements. The consolidated funds 
include the Fire. Police, Storm Water Management. Street Improvement, Sidewalk Improvement, and the Park 
Improvement funds. Although these former special revenue funds have been consolidated into the General fund, the 
City's 201 1 budget approved by the City Council in October of 2010 included specific amounts for each fund. Therefore, 
the original budget amounts approved for the General fund with a comparison to the actual revenues and expenditures 
incurred during 201 1 are shown on Exhibits 8-3 and 8-4. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

CauitaI Assets. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of December 
31, 2011 is $117.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation and related debt). The 2011 amount is $3.2 million less than 
the prior year. The reduction in 2011 is a result of debt related payments and depreciation incurred in 2011 exceeding the 
City's investment in new capital assets during 2011. The $117.2 million investment in capital assets includes water and 
sewer mains, office furniture and equipment, machinery and equipment, vehicles, buildings and improvements, roads, and 
storm drains. Additional information regarding the City's capital assets can be found in Exhibit A-14, Note D of the 
financial statements. 

Lona-Term Wt. At the end of the current fiscal year. the City of Auburn Hills has total debt outstanding of $14,191,167. 
The governmental long term debt included a limited tax general obligation of $375,000, special assessment bonds of 
$1,975,000, and debt of $1,026,000 related to two construction projects financed by State Revolving fund loans. The 
business activity debt consists of $8,479,376 of limited tax general obligation bonds ($8,250.000 of bond principal and 
$229,376 of bond premium) which were issued in 2009 to refund a 1999 bond issuance. The business activity also 
includes a debt amount of $1,149,696 related to a sewer construction project financed by a State Revolving fund loan. In 
addition, the City assumed a pro-rata share of the debt related to the Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Dain project which as 
of year-end is $1,186,095. The total indebtedness of the City increased by $1,072,521 in 2011 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANB ANALYSIS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS 

Ca~i ta l  Asset and Debt Administration (continued1 

The City's current credit ratings remain an AA rating from Standard & Poor's Corporation and an A1 and A2 rating from 
Moody's Investors Service on general obligations unlimited tax bond issues and on issues with tax limitations respectively. 

The City's debt limit, as defined by statute, is ten percent (10%) of equalized property values or $189,630,188. Total long- 
term debt is $14,191,167 at year-end. Debt subject to the limit is $8,625,000; thus. the City is currently utilizing only 4.5% 
of its total debt capacity. 

Additional information on the City of Auburn Hills' long-tern1 debt can be found in Exhibit A-14. Note F of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budqets and Rates 

The City experienced a 6.25% decrease in its property tax values for the 2011 tax year which will result in the Civs  tax 
revenues declining for the third consecutive in the 2012 fiscal year. The City has a preliminary estimate of a 6.0% 
property tax value decrease for the 2012 tax year using assessments as of December 31, 2011 which could result in a 
further reduction in the City's tax revenues in 2013. 

The Citv continued to reverse the trend of escalating defined pension benefit and retiree health care cost durina 2011. 
The reduced level of required annual contributions occurred asa  result of pension benefit changes and as a resuit of the 
Citv instituting a retiree health savings alan for all new full-time hires which encomDasses all baraainina units and non- 
unfon staff eTfective January 1. 2072.' The City will continue to seek modifications in the reiremeit plans with its 
bargaining units to ensure that the benefits are not excessive compared to other Michigan communities while at the same 
time remaining competitive. More detailed comments about the status of the City's retirement programs appears in Exhibit 
A-14, Note I of the financial statements. 

The City's 2012 budget includes a rate increase plan that will enable both the consolidated Water and Sewer fund to 
become financially self sustaining within several years. 

Request for Information 

Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial infomlation should 
be addressed to the Finance Department, City of Auburn Hills. 1827 N. Squirrel Rd., Auburn Hills, Michigan 48326. 
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-1 

Governmental Business-Type 

Cash and investments (Notes C and M) ........... $ 32,291,525 $ 13,041.813 $ 45.333.338 $ 23,639,259 
Receivables: 

Due from other governmental units ............ 

Restricted Asset held by County (Note F) ......... 
Net OPEB Asset (Note I) ............................... 1,180.464 1,180,464 
Pension Asset (Note I) ................................. 11,180,068 11,180,068 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable ........................................ 
Accrued payroll liabilities ............................... 528,683 
Retainages payable ..................................... 48,291 
Michigan Tax Tribunal liabilities ...................... 2,042,085 
Deposits payable ......................................... 331,364 

portion) (Note F and Note L) ................. 2,635.000 9,459,446 12,094,446 
Compensated Absences (current) .............. 
Compensated Absences (net of current) ..... 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets (net of related debt) ... 
Restricted assets (Note B) ............................. 

Brown Road Special Assessment Fund ...... 2,307,532 2,307,532 
Tree Ordinance ..................................... 543.300 
Major and Local Roads ........................... 220.933 
Metro Act ............................................. 333.142 
Police Grants and Forfeitures ................... 36,552 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 106,294,590 $ 67,832,564 $ 174,127,154 $ 74,740.773 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-2 

Business- 

Charges for Grants and and Governmental 
FunctionslProsrams Expenses Selvices Contributions Contributions Activities Activities 

Prirnaty government: 

$ (258,538) $ (258,538) 
2,720,850 $ 432,011 (2,288,839) 

(1 1,647,104) 

(275,532) 

Total Governmental Activities 25,699.140 2,093,753 1,475,148 62,725 (22,067,514) (22,067,514) 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewe $ (2,485,580) 

Total Business-Type Activities 15,615,652 11,993,032 33,059 633.822 

TotalPrimaryGovernment $ 41,314,792 $ 14,086,785 $ 1,508,207 $ 696,547 (22,067,514) (2,955,739) (25,023,253) 

1,030,488 

Total Component Units $ 3,264,697 $ 30.201 $ 0 $ 1,292.947 

General Revenues: 

....................... Use of money and investments 
Other general revenues: 

.................................. Change in net assets 

...................... Net assets-beginning Balance 

................................................ Net Assets-ending $ 106,294,590 $ 67,832,564 $ 174,127,154 $ 74,740,773 



BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-3 

Major & Brown Road 

Local Debt -Special Non-Major Governmental 

General Streets Assessment 

Cash and investments (Note C) $ 27,237,331 $ 145.400 $ 329,361 $ 1,308,904 $ 29,020.996 ....................... 

1.978.171 

TOTALASSETS 46,373,935 345,965 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

................................. 

1,978,171 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 21,932,849 125,032 

FUNDBALANCES 
Fund balances 

Non spendable ...................................... 327,929 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 24,441,086 220.933 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 46,373,935 $ 345,965 $ 2,307.532 $ 1,312,334 $ 50,339,766 



RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO 
THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-4 

Total fund balances of governmental funds (See Exhibit A-3) 5 26,184,113 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets 
are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Allocation of Internal Service Funds to Governmental adivities: 

Retiree Health Care Fun 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Governmental obligation loans payabl 

Accrued interest payabl 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period 
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Special assessments recei 
Forester Square special as 
General, Police B Fire fund 

Record Net Pension Asset ............................................................................ 
Record Other Postretirement Employee Benefit (OPEB) Asset ............................. 

Net assets of governmental activities $ 106,294,590 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 



STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-5 

Local 
Assessment 

$ 17,335,001 
$ 733.265 

$ 242,811 

TOTAL REVENUE 24.924.132 1,228,645 

Capital outlay ......................................................... 
Debt service: 

600,000 
137,450 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 23,158,231 2,286,554 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 1,765,901 (1,057.909) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
State Revolving Fund loan proceeds ........................... 154.547 
General fund transfers ............................................. 0 925,000 
Transfers out to other funds ...................................... (2.486.314) (65,052) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2,331,767) 859,948 

REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (565,866) (197,961) 

Fund balance at beginning of year, as adjusted (Note B) 25,006,952 418,894 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 24,441,086 $ 220,933 $ 329,361 $ 1,192,733 $ 26,184,113 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 



RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

Exhibit A-6 

Net change in fund balance-total governmental funds (See Exhibit A-5) 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities the cost of assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. Details of the adjustments are: 

Capital outlay (less Internal Service additons of $342,198 

............................ Depreciation expense (less Internal Service depreciation expense of $481,875) 

The payment of principal on long-term debt consumes current financial resources of the 
of the governmental funds. However, on the Statement of Net Assets, repayment of 
principal is recorded as a reduction to long-term debt payable and does not have 
any effect on net assets. 

Long-term debt principal repaymen 
Change in interest expense on deb 

The incurrence of long term payroll liabilities for earned sick and vacation time is not recorded 
................... until the amount is paid; this transaction needs to be recognized as a current expense 

The incurrence of long-term debt is a revenue source in governmental funds whereas in the 
Statement of Activities, this transaction increases long-term debt and has no impact on 
net assets ....................................................................................................................... 

The activities of the internal service funds are considered part of the governmental 

governmental fund 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not pro 
revenues) are not reported as revenues in the fund 

OPE6 net asset change reported in the Statement of Activities does not provide current 
.............................. financial resources and therefore is not reported as in the governmental funds 

Pension asset change reported in the Statement of Activities does not provide current 
.............................. financial resources and therefore is not reported as in the governmental funds 

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-7 

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds 
Fieldstone Internal 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note C) ..................... 

Water and Sewer 

$ 11,747.599 

Golf Club Total Service 

Receivables: 
2,069.997 

........................................................................................ 
2,376 

300,000 

209.371 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 74,329,343 

LAND.BUlLDlNGSANDEQU1PMENT 
Water and sewer mains 
Land and improvemen ts... .................................................................................... 

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS 

Less: Allowance for depreciation ............................................................................ 
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF DEPRECIATION 

Due from other funds (Note G) .............................................................................. 
Restricted asset held by county (Note F and Note N) .................................................. 
Other non-current assets - unamortized discount & capitalized interest .......................... 

TOTAL FOR NONCURRENT ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Current portion of long-term debt (Note F 

Deferred revenu 
Due to other fun 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Due to other funds (Note G) .................................................................................................. 
LONG TERM DEBT-Net of current portion (Note F) ............................................................... 2,245,070 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,185.957 10,880,636 15,066,593 56,788 I 
NET ASSETS: 

Invested in capital assets net of related debt. 
Unrestricted ....................................................................................................... 14,743,163 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 63,092,755 

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the 
statement of net assets are different because: 

Allocation of internal service fund 
............................................. to business-type activities 696,203 

See Exhibit A-14. The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement Net assets of business-type activities $ 67,832,564 I 



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND NET ASSETS -- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-8 

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds 
Water and Fieldstone Internal 

Sewer Fund Golf Club Total Service 
OPERATING REVENUE 

$ 5,425,704 $ 5,425,704 

4,431,324 4,431.324 
119,406 119,406 $ 1,263,005 
39,611 39,611 

1,213.706 

0 0 

0 0 ......................................................... 781,250 

0 $ 1,104,928 1,104,928 
0 51,637 51,637 

Merchandise sal 0 86,866 86,866 

Food &beverage sales 0 497,596 497,596 

Other operating inwrn 230,383 5,577 235,960 68,628 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 10,246,427 1,746.604 11,993,032 3,326,589 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries and wage 638,610 
Fringe benefits ............................................................. 382,452 

162,561 
93,243 

Other operating expenses 933,722 
Administrative charges ................................................... 1,136,430 
Cost of water and sewage disposal ................................... 7,294,894 
Depreciation and amoltization ......................................... 2,768,271 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 13,410,183 
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (3,163,756) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest earned ............................................................. 
Interest expense ........................................................... 

.............................................................. Property taxes 
Other income ............................................................... 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 66,243 
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 8 CAPITAL CO (3,097,513) 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 
State Capital Grant ....................................................... 
Caoital and lateral charaes ............................................. - ~ ,~ ~-~ " 
Developer contributions .................................................. L 173 335 

TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 666,881 
LOSS BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS (2,430,632) 

OPERATING TRANSFERS 
Transfen-out.. ............ 
Transfen-in.. ............................................................... L 65 052 

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS 65,052 
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (2,365,580) 

Net assets-beginning of year ........................................... 65,458,335 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 63,092,755 

Amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of 
activities are different because the business-type activities of the 
internal service fund have been added to these activities (490,450) ...................... 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement Change in net assets of business-type activities $ (1,167,875) 

25 26 



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -- PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31, 201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-9 

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Funds 
Fieldstone 

Water and Golf Internal 
Sewer Fund - Club Total Service 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from custome $ 9,943,642 $ 1,741,027 $ 11,684,669 $ 2,044,254 
Cash payments for goods an (7,387,604) (856.051) (8,243,655) (690.243) 
Cash payments to employee (1,017,237) (467,671) (1,484,908) (314,194) 
Other operating expense (2,058,933) (1 69,249) (2,228.1 82) (1,620,931) 
Other operating inwm 230,383 5,577 235,960 1,282,334 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES (289,749) 253,633 (36,116) 701,220 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Operating transfers in/(out) 65,052 1,204,713 1,269,765 3,063 
Other nonoperating receipts(payment 597,000 597.000 73,595 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 65,052 1,801,713 1,866,765 76,658 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds from loans (Note F) 65,916 65,916 
Principal paid on long term debt (55,281) (1,230.000) (1,285,281) 
Net Interest paidlinterest accrued on long term debt (17,121) (31 9,738) (336,859) 

460,487 0 460,487 
Purchase of capital (40.561) 0 (40.561) (390,440) 
NET CASH PROV 41 3,440 (1,549,738) (1,136.298) (390.440) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received on investments ................................................................................................... 85.328 0 85.328 14.436 

NET CASH PROWDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 85,328 0 85,328 14,436 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash eq 274.071 505,608 779,679 401,874 
Cash and cash equivalents-Beginning of yea 11,473,528 225,072 11,698.600 3.432.188 

Cash and cash equivalentsend of year ...................................................................................... $ 11,747,599 $ 730,680 $ 12,478,279 $ 3,834,062 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) $ (3,163,756) $ (154,521) $ (3,318,277) $ 188,878 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Depreciation and amoaization expense ....................................................................... 2,768,271 403,211 3,171,462 565,382 
Decrease (increase) in due from other fund 0 (1.996) 
Decrease (increase) in accou (72,402) (72,402) 0 
Decrease (increase) in inven 11,219 (2,912) 8,307 
Increase (decrease) in acwu 163,094 6,755 169,849 (52,397) 
Increase (decrease) in due to (2.361) (2,361) (73) 

3.825 3,461 7,286 1.426 
Total Adjustment 2,874,007 408.154 3,282,161 512,342 

$ (289,749) $ 253,633 $ (36,116) $ 701,220 

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
During 2011 developers contributed $173,335 of mains to the City. of which $126.512 were water mains and $46,823 were sewer mains. 
In addition, on behalf of the City. Oakland County constructed approximately $707,437 of sewer lines for the Oakland-Mawmb 
Interceptor project, for which the City incurred long term debt. 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral palt of the statement 



STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,201 1 

ClTY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-10 

Health Care 
Trust Fund 

$ 8,931,774 $ 

Accrued interest and dividends ....................................... 
Investments at fair value: 

Mutual funds ............................................................... 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Undistributed tax collection 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 
Held in trust for pension benefits and other purposes ............. $ 0 $ 10,357,672 $ 39,509.413 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 

ClTY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-I I 

Retiree Pension 
Health Care 
Trust Fund 

$ 1,226,681 $ 1,096.157 
Plan Members 

Investment earning 
Less: investment expense 

NET INVESTMENT EARNINGS 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 

DEDUCTIONS 

Pension benefits 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
Net assets-beginning of the yea 

NET ASSETS-END OF THE YEAR $ 10,357,672 $ 39,509,413 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the Statement 



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -- COMPONENT UNITS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-12 

Economic 
Brownfield Development 

TlFA 85-A TlFA 85-8 TlFA 86-D Authority Corporation 
ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note L) ... ... ... ... ......... ... ... ... ... ... . . . .  . . . . . . . . . $ 7,485,058 $ 9,165,211 $ 3,160,670 $ 3,818,443 $ 9,877 $ 23,639,259 
Receivables: 

709,016 896,370 491,724 417.637 2,514.747 
0 

6,015,341 2,017,211 8,032,552 
2,082,113 1,205,997 1,979,852 5,267,962 

536.534 16,337,896 16,876,430 
10,079 23.146 33,225 

Water and Sewer mains (Note L 528.515 561,953 345.1 72 1,435,640 
Construction in progress (Note L 399,898 399,898 
Roads and other infrastructure ( 12,828,937 2,434,568 4,621,761 19,885,266 

TOTAL ASSETS 30,597,491 14,264,099 28,977,432 4,236.080 9.877 78,084,979 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 
125,737 15,254 19,769 76 160,836 

456 2,010 2.466 
709,016 896,370 491,724 41 7,637 2,514,747 

0 0 

256.263 199.631 91.383 118,880 666,157 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,091,472 1,111,255 604,886 536,593 0 3.344.206 

NET ASSETS 
Investment in capital assets-net of related deb 22,403,417 4,202,518 25,325,038 51,930,973 
Restricted for program 7,102,602 8,950,326 3,047,508 3.699.487 9,877 22,809,800 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 29,506,019 $ 13,152,844 $ 28,372.546 $ 3,699,487 $ 9,877 $ 74,740,773 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
COMPONENT UNITS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit A-13 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets 
Capital Economic 

Charges for Grants and Brownfield Development 
Expenses Services Contributions TlFA 85-A TlFA 86-D Authority Corporation TlFA 85-8 

COMPONENT UNITS 
$ 1,161.197 29,013 $ 262,459 $ (869,725) $ (869,725) 

794,866 $ (794,866) (794,866) 
1,249,661 1,188 1.030.488 $ (217,985) (217.985) 

58.973 $ (58,973) (58,973) 
0 $ 0 0 

TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 3,264,697 $ 30,201 $ 1,292,947 (869,725) (794,866) (217.985) (58,973) 0 (1,941,549) 

General revenues: 
Taxe $ 862,534 $ 1,410,529 $ 801,738 $ 281.051 $ 3,355,852 

Use of money and prope rty... ..................................... 51,755 51.619 20.266 16,725 $ 28 140,393 
Total General Revenues and Special Items 914,289 1,462,148 822,004 297,776 28 3,496,245 

Change in Net Assets 44.564 667,282 604,019 238,803 28 1,554,696 
Net assets - beginning of year ........................................ 29,461,455 12,485,562 27,768,527 3,460,684 9.849 73,186,077 

Net Assets at End of Year $ 29,506,019 $ 13,152,844 $ 28,372,546 $ 3,699,487 $ 9,877 $ 74,740.773 

See Exhibit A-14, The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of the statement 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ClTY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT A-14 

NOTE A - DESCRIPTION OF ClTY OPERATIONS. REPORTING ENTITY AND FUND TYPES 

The City of Auburn Hills was incorporated in 1983 out of the former Pontiac Township. The City covers an area of approximately 17.5 
square miles and provides services to its 21,412 residents (2010 U. S. Census of Population) in many areas including police and fire 
protection, street maintenance, water and sewer services, community enrichment and recreation services, as well as other general 
governmental functions. The City is governed by an elected, seven-member non-partisan Council. The Council elects one of its members 
to serve as mayor. 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the financial position and results of operation 
of the City of Auburn Hills (the primary government) and its component units. The component units discussed below are included in the 
City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships with the City. 

Blended Corn~onent Units: 

The Auburn Hills Building Authority is a legally separate entity governed by a five-member Board that is appointed entirely by the 
City Council. It is reported as if it was part of the primary government because its primary purpose is to finance and construct the 
City's public facilities. 

Discretelv Presented Com~onent Units: 

The following component units are reported within the component unit column in the government-wide financial statements. They 
are reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City. 

The Tax Increment Finance Authorities (TIFAs) are governed by a nine-member Board. The Board is appointed by the Mayor and 
confirmed by the City Council. The City can significantly influence the operations of the TlFA Board since the City Council 
approves the TlFA budgets. The TlFAs were created to finance infrastructure improvements within certain boundaries of the City. 

The Brownfield Redevelopment Authority is governed by a five-member Board. The Board is appointed by the Mayor and 
confirmed by the City Council. Since the City Council appoints the Brownfield Authority, the City can significantly influence the 
operations of the Authority. The five-member board is comprised of one member of the City Council and four citizens at-large. The 
Brownfield Authority was created to provide a means for financing remediation of Brownfield (environmentally contaminated) sites 
within the City. 

The Economic Development Corporation (EDC) is governed by a nine-member Board. This Board is appointed by the Mayor and 
confirmed by the City Council. Accordingly, the City can significantly influence the operations of the Economic Development 
Corporation. The EDC was created to provide a means and method for the encouragement and assistance of industrial and 
commercial enterprises in relocating, purchasing, constructing, improving or expanding within the City. The EDC may issue 
industrial revenue bonds as a means of providing financing for certain enterprises. 

Although no separate financial statements are prepared for the component units, all financial information can be obtained from the 
City's Finance Department. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies of the City of Auburn Hills conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GPAP) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies used by the City of Auburn 
Hills. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all 
of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the inter-fund financial activity 
has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
The primary government is also reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function, or segment, are offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues 
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by 
a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as 
general revenues. 
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NOTE B - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued] 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and the component units 
even though the fiduciary fund statements are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus 

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary fund, the fiduciary fund and the component unit financial statements. Revenue is recorded when 
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are 
recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are accounted for using a current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available for use. Revenue is 
considered to be available if it is collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt setvice expenditures, 
as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. For this purpose, the City 
considers all revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year. The following major revenue 
sources meet the availability criterion: state-shared revenue, state gas and weight tax revenue, and interest associated with the 
current fiscal year. Conversely, special assessments and federal grant reimbursements will be collected after the period of 
availability; receivables have been recorded for these, along with a "deferred revenue" liability. Revenues which are considered 
measurable, but not available are recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue. 

The City reports the following major governmental Funds: 

a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for ail financial resources of the City which 
are not required to be accounted for in other funds. In accordance with GASB 54, the Police, Fire. Storm Water 
Management, Park Improvement, Sidewalk Improvement, and Street Improvement funds have been consolidated with the 
General Fund for financial reporting in the fiscal year ending December 31.201 1 

b. The Major and Local Street Fund is used to account for the revenues received from the State of Michigan under Act 51 
which are specifically eamarked for construction and maintenance of roads. Formerly, the City maintained separate funds 
for Major and Local Streets; however, they have been combined into one fund for the 201 1 financial statements to comply 
with the GASB 54 reporting requirements. 

C. The Brown Road Special Assessment Fund is used to account for the funding and payment of principal and interest on debt 
issued in 1999 for the paving of Brown Road adjacent to the Auburn Mile Development. Property tax special assessments 
are being paid by the property owners in this development. 

Proprietary Funds are used to account for City operations which are similar to those in the private sector. All proprietary funds are 
accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities 
associated with the operation of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Proprietary fund-type operating statements 
present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

a. The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the operations of the City's Water and Sewer departments which provide water and 
sewer to residents and commercial enterprises of the City on a user charge basis. Formerly, Water and Sewer were 
distinctive funds; however, for the 201 1 fiscal year the two funds have been combined into one fund and are presented as a 
single consolidated fund in the financial statements for fiscal year ending December 31, 201 1. 

b. The Fieldstone Golf Club Fund is used to account for the operations of the City's municipal golf course, Fieldstone Golf Club. 
This fund is funded primarily through user fees charged to individuals using these facilities. 

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type: 

a. internal Service Funds are used to record the financing of services provided by the City to other departments and funds on a 
cost reimbursement basis. In addition to the Fleet fund, the Retiree Health Care fund, previously a special revenue fund is 
now shown as an internal service fund. 

36 
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NOTE B - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

b. Three Fiduciary funds: the Agency, Pension Fund, and Retiree Health Care Trust. 

The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for other governments or other funds. 
Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement or results of 
operations. 

Beginning in 2004, the Pension Fund was changed over from a third party managed activity to a City held and controlled 
trust. There is a Pension Board made up of nine members that administer the Pension Plan. The Pension trust holds 
the resources for the members and beneficiaries of the defined benefit pension plan. 

Beginning in 2006, the City created a Retiree Health Care Trust (RHCT). The RHCT is administered by a nine member 
Board. The RHCT holds the resources for the qualified retirees and their dependents and/or beneficiaries for retiree 
health care insurance. 

Private sector standards of accounting issued prior to December 1, 1989 are generally followed in both the government-wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with the standards of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board. The City has elected not to follow private sector standards issued after November 30, 1989 for its 
business-type activities. 

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions 
to this general rule are charges between the City's water and sewer function and various other functions of the City. Eliminations of 
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets or fund balance are available, the 
City's policy is to first apply unrestricted resources. When an expense is incurred purposes for which amounts in any of the 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, the City's spending order policy is: 1) committed, 2) assigned, 3) 
unassigned. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenue and expenses 
generally result from charges to customers for sales and services. The Waterisewer Fund also recognizes the portion of water 
related tap fees intended to recover current costs (e.g.. labor and materials to hook up new customers) as operating revenue. The 
capital and lateral charges represent the portion intended to recover the cost of the infrastructure and are recognized as non- 
operating revenue. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and 
expenses. 

Propertv Taxes 

Property taxes and other revenue that are both measurable and available for use to finance operations of the City are recorded as 
revenue when earned. Other revenue is recorded when received. 

Properties are assessed as of December 31 and the related property tax becomes a lien on December 1 of the following year. The 
related property taxes are billed December 1 with the final collection date of February 28 before the delinquent taxes are turned 
over to Oakland County for collection and payoff. Property taxes to finance the 201 1 operations were assessed December 31, 
2009, levied on December 1, 2010, and substantially collected in January and February, 2011. See Note K for further information. 

Property taxes levied December 1,201 1 will be used to finance the City's operations in 2012. As such, these taxes are recorded 
as deferred revenue in each respective fund at December 31, 201 1. See Notes D and K for additional property tax information. 

Cash Eauivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary funds consider all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents. Investment income from pooled investments is generally allocated to each fund using 
a weighted average. 

lnvestments 

lnvestments are recorded at fair value, based on quoted market prices. 

Receivables and Pavables 

In general on the fund based statements, outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due toifrom other funds." 
However, any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." All trade and properly tax receivables are shown net of allowance 
for uncollectible amounts. 
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NOTE B - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

lnventories and Prepaid Items 

lnventories in the business-type activities are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis which approximates market value. 
lnventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Resale inventory in 
the governmental funds are valued at lower of cost or market. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future years 
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Pension and Other Post Employment Costs (OPEB) 

The City offers both pension and retiree health care benefits to retirees. The City receives an actuarial valuation to compute the 
annual required contribution (ARC) necessary to fund the obligation over the remaining amortization period. In the governmental 
funds, pension and other post employment benefits (OPEB) costs are recognized as contributions are made. For the government 
wide statements and proprietaly funds, the City reports the full accrual cost equal to the current year required contribution, adjusted 
for interest and "adjustment to the ARC on the beginning of year underpaid amount, if any. 

Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, and storm water drains), are reported in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Until 2009, capital 
assets were defined by the City as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $2,500 and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. Beginning with the 2009 fiscal year, the City adopted revised criteria for recognizing capital assets. The City adopted 
a dollar cost threshold of $25.000 for capital asset classes pertaining to waterlsewer infrastructurelmains, buildings, and roads. All 
asset capital classes must have a useful life of at least one year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if the original purchase price is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at 
the time of donation. 

Depreciation on property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets. The estimated useful lives are: 

Water and Sewer Main 

................... 3-5 years 

Machinery and Equipmen 

Buildings and Improvements 

Roads ..................................................................................... 40 years 

Storm Drain 50 years 
Lona-Term Liabilities 

In the govemment-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the proprietary fund types, long term debt and 
other lono term obliaations are reoorted as liabilities in the aoolicable aovemmental activities. business t h e  activities or urourietaw " " . . . . . . 
fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. ~ o n i  
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 
In the governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources in the 
period when the debt was issued. Bond premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while bond 
discounts are reported as other financing uses in the period that the bonds were issued. Issuance costs are reported in the same 
period as the bond issuance and are reported as debt service expenditures. 

Emplovee Vacation and Sick Time 
City employees are granted vacation in varying amounts based on length of service. Vacation pay is accrued and fully vested 
when earned; upon termination, employees are paid accumulated vacation at full rates to a limit of their maximum accrual which 
varies by bargaining unit. 

All employees accrue eight hours of sick time monthly. Sick time hours are fully vested when earned. Any accrued amount in 
excess of 240 hours is paid at full rates at the end of each year. Upon termination, employees are paid for their remaining sick 
time at full rates. 

The liability for sick and vacation time is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements. A 
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for employee terminations that occur as of year end. 

Fund Eauity 
In March 2009, the GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund-Type Definitions. The 
objective of this statement is to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance 
classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. 
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NOTE B - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a 
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Under this 
standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and unreserved/undesignated were replaced with five new 
classifications - nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. The City has adopted the requirements of this 
statement in its audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31,201 1 

In order to conform the classifications of the funds to the appropriate fund types required by GASB 54, six funds reported as special 
revenue funds in the City's financial statements for the period ending December 31, 2010 have been consolidated in the general 
fund for the City's financial statements for the period ending December 31, 201 1. Also, the Major and Local Road Funds, formerly 
separate funds, have been consolidated for the 201 1 financial statements. The reporting and fund consolidation changes have 
resulted in a revised beginning of the year fund balance for the General Fund and the MajorILocal Road Fund. The original 
December 31, 2010 fiscal year ending fund balances for the affected funds are shown below. The total of these fund balances 
have been combined to provide a restated beginning of the year fund balance for the General Fund and the MajorILocal Road 
Fund. 

In prior year financial statements, the City recorded amounts due to employees for unused vacation and sick time in an internal 
service fund. The internal service fund has been eliminated, and the liabilities are now reflected in each employee's specific fund 
subject to modified accrual recognition. This fund elimination has resulted in a change to the beginning fund balance of the 
General Fund and MajorILocal Road Fund which are shown below. 

Beginning Fund Balances Internal Restated Beainnina Fund Balance 
as of 12/31/2010 Service General MajorlLocal 

General MaiorlLocal Roads Elimination Fund Road Fund 

General Fund ............................... $ 8,518,764 $ 1,385,465 $ 9,904,229 
Police Fund ................................. 12,477.674 12,477,674 

Fire Fund .................................... 1,820,997 1,820,997 
Park Improvement Fund ................. 362,565 362,565 
Street Improvement Fund ............... 279,731 279,731 

Sidewalk Improvement Fund ........... 130,774 130.774 
Storm Water Management Fund ...... 30,982 30,982 

Major and Local Road Fund ............ $ 367,325 51,589 $ 418,894 

Restated Beginning Fund Balance ........... $23,621,487 $ 367,325 $ 1,437,034 $ 25,006,952 $ 418,894 

The governmental funds report the following components of fund balance in the financial statements: 

Nonspendable: Amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted: Amounts legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation for a specific purpose. 

Committed: Amounts that have been formally set aside by the City Council for use for specific purposes. Commitments are made 
and can be rescinded only via resolution of the City Council. 

Assigned: Intent to spend resources on specific purposes by the City Manager, Assistant City Manager, Finance Director, and the 
Deputy Finance Director, who are authorized by a resolution approved by the City Council to make assignments. 

Unassigned: Amounts not othelwise categorized above and available to be spent for any purpose. 

Restricted Net Assets and Committed Fund Balances 
Net assets that are restricted for specified uses by bond debt requirements, grant provisions, or other external requirements are 
classified as restricted net assets. Fund balances that are committed have been designated for a specific purpose and have been 
set aside by the City Council. Following is a list of restricted net assets and committed fund balances as of 12/31/2011: 

Restricted Committed 
Fund Description Net Assets Fund Description Fund Balance 

....................... Brown Road Special Assessments ......... $ 2,307,532 Park Improvement $ 58,484 
..................... Tree Ordinance ................................. 543,300 Street Improvement 1,886,000 

................. Community Development Block Grants ... 16,302 Sidewalk Improvement 460.625 
Major and Local Roads ......................... 220,933 Storm Management ..................... 350.725 

......................... Police Grants and Forfeitures ................ 36.552 Wayne Disposal 263.437 
Metro Act... ........................................ 333.142 

Total Restricted Net Assets ..................... $ 3,457,761 Total Committed Fund Balances .... $ 3,019,271 
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NOTE B - Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

In addition, the restricted net assets of the component unit funds in the amount of $22,809,800 are restricted to be spent in 
accordance with the respective TIFA, Brownfield and EDC plan documents. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses 
during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

NOTE C -Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943. as amended) authorizes local governmental units to make 
deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in 
Michigan. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United States or any agency or 
instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements; bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper 
rated within the two highest classifications that matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State 
of Michigan or its political subdivisions that are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that 
are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. To the extent that cash from various funds has been 
pooled in an investment, related investment income is allocated to each fund based on relative participation in the pool. 

The Pension Trust Fund is authorized by Michigan Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended, to invest in certain reverse repurchase 
agreements, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity investment contracts, real estate leased to public entities, 
mortgages, real estate (if the trust fund's assets exceed $250 million), debt or equity of certain small business, certain state and 
local government obligations, and certain other specified investment vehicles. 

The City adopted Public Act 149 of 1999 which allows the City to invest retiree health care funds in more diversified investment 
asset classes as allowed under Michigan Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended. 

The investment policy adopted by the City Council in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds 
and securities of the United States government, bank accounts, commercial paper, municipal bonds, and certificates of deposit. 
The City's deposits and investment policies are in accordance with statutory authority. The City's Treasurer periodically submits 
recommendations for approved depository banks and credit unions to the City Council. The recommendations are based on 
external rating services and recommendations by the City's two approved external cash fund managers. 

The City's cash and investments are subject to three types of risk, which are examined in more detail below: 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The City's investment policy restricts depository accounts to federally insured institutions located 
within the state of Michigan (consistent with state law). At year end, the City had $21.139.979 of bank deposits (certificates of 
deposit, checking and savings accounts) that were uninsured and uncollateralized. The uninsured and uncollateralized amount 
includes $8,977,919 of a fiduciary trust fund and $9,884 of component unit funds. The City believes that due to the dollar amounts 
of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure all deposits. As a result, the City evaluates each 
financial institution with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an 
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories. 

In December of 2009, the City contracted with two investment managers to manage a portion of the City's surplus operating cash. 
The funds placed under the investment managers represent commingled funds of both the primary government and component 
unit funds. As of December 31, 2011, the City held additional bank deposits (certificates of deposit, checking accounts) of 
$2,049,684 of which $1,299,684 were uninsured and uncollateralized. Additional investments purchased by the two investment 
managers and held as of December 31, 2011 by the City's custodial bank include: U.S. agency securities of $24,973,018, 
municipal bonds of $6,832.671, and commercial paper of $6,860,328. 

In addition to the governmental fund bank deposits noted above, the City had mutual fund investments held in trust by a custodial 
bank as part of the City's Pension plan and Retiree Health Care program. The mutual fund investments stated at market value 
were $39,509,413 and $10,357,672 in the Pension Plan and the Retiree Health Care Trust respectively as of December 31, 201 1. 
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NOTE C -Cash and Cash Eauivalents (continued) 

Interest Rate Risk - lnterest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates. The --- 
City's investment policy restricts the average maturity of investments to two (2) years with the exception of long-term debt or capital fund 
investments which may be invested in securities matched to cash flow requirements with a maximum maturity of five (5) years. The City's 
pension and retiree health investment policies restrict cash equivalents to a dollar-weighted maturity of ninety (90) days or less. At year 
end, the City's investments have the following range of maturity dates: 

Maturity (Years) 

Governmental Unit Fair Value <1 - 1 - 5  6-10 - >I0 

Pension Pooled Funds $ 100,281 $ 12,782,480 

(Average Maturity 8.9 years) 

Retiree Health Care Trust Pooled Funds 395,816 3,287,913 

(Average Maturity 8.9 years) 

Cutwater (MBIA) Investment Manager $ 20,388,909 

(Average Maturity 1.25 years) 

Ambassador Capital Management 19,644,456 
(Average Maturity 1.24 years) 

State MUNl Commercial 
Investment Manaqers Portfolio Distribution: Bond US Agencies Paper 

Ambassador Capital Management $ 6,832,671 $ 6,590,049 $ 4,861.300 

Cutwater (MBIA) Investment Manager 18,382,969 1,999,028 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper to the highest two ratings issued by nationally recognized statistical rating -- 
organizations. The City's general investment policy also limits investments to: commercial paper to the highest rating (A-IIP-I); bankers' 
acceptances whose long-term debt rating is at least an A; obligations of this state or its political subdivisions to the highest rating (A-11P- 
1); pooled funds with a rating of at least an A. 

The City's pension fund and retiree health care investment policies require the fixed income managers to have no more than 15% of the 
portfolio in non-investment grade securities (BB to CCC rated) with at least 80% of the non-investment grade consisting of B-rated or 
higher securities. As of December 31, 201 1, both the Pension Fund and the Retiree Health Care Trust fixed income portfolios held non- 
investment grade securities that represented approximately 4% of their total fixed income investments. 

Governmental Unit 

Primary Government 

Component Units 

Retiree Health Care 

Retiree Health Care 

Pension 

Pension 

lnvestment 
m!? Ratina Fair Value Ratina Aaency 

Pooled Funds Aaa $ 8,284,215 Moody's 

Pooled Funds Aaa 6,711,510 Moody's 

Pooled Funds AaalAAA 395,816 Moody's I S&P 

Pooled Funds AA 3,287,913 S&P 

Pooled Funds AIIPI 100.281 S&P I Moody's 

Pooled Funds AA 12,782,480 S&P 

lnvestment Manager Funds (commingled) Pooled Funds 

U.S. Agency Securities Aaa/AA+ 24,973,018 Moody's I S&P 

Commercial Paper P-IIA-1 6,860,328 Moody's I S&P 

State Municipal Bonds AaalAA+ 6,832,671 Moody's I S&P 



CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT A-14 

NOTE D - FIXED ASSETS 

Capital asset activity of the City's governmental and business-type activities was as follows: 
Balance at Balance at 

Governmental Activities Jan. 1.2011 Additions Deletions Reclass Dec. 31,201 1 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land & Improvements ............................. $ 5,242,365 $ 76,148 $ - $ - $ 5,318.513 
Construction in Progress ......................... 

Capital assets being depreciated 
Office Furniture & Equipment ................... 1,012,620 89,077 1,101,697 
Machinery & Equipment .......................... 4,323,419 434,990 337,913 5,096,322 
Vehic 6,222,108 170,846 179.386 435,900 6,649,468 
Buildi ....................... 18,814,473 45,182 18,859,655 
Storm Drains ........................................ 7.600.980 93.694 7,694,674 
Roads 65,886,388 101,834 65,988,222 

...................................... 103,859,988 935,623 179,386 773,813 105,390.038 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Office Furniture & Equipment ................... 921,697 35,692 957,389 
Machine~y & Equipment .......................... 3,717,975 348,978 308,145 4,375,098 

325,904 169,960 327,230 6,121,929 
659,454 7,976,549 

Storm Drains ... ... ... ......... ... ... ... ... ... . . 1,121,646 150,027 1,271.673 
Roads 21,978,134 1,653,684 23,631,818 

Subtotal ...................................... 40,695,302 3,173,739 169.960 635,375 44,334,456 

Net capital assets being depreciated ... ... ... ... ... ... 63,164,686 (2,238.116) 9,426 138,438 61,055,562 

Net capital assets $68,407,051 $ (2,161,968) $ 9,426 $ 138,438 $ 66,374.095 

Balance at Balance at 
Business-Tv~e Activities Jan. 1,201 1 Additions Deletions Reclass Dec. 31. 2011 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Lan $ 8,320,420 $ - $ - $ - $ 8,320,420 
Land Improvements ............................... 83,297 83,297 
Construction in progress ... ... ............... ... . 848,903 808,573 1,657,476 

Subtotal ...................................... 9,252,620 808,573 10,061.193 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Water & Sewer Mains ............................. 64,891,629 266,093 65,157,722 
Machinery & Equipment ... ... ... ............ ... .. 2,988,640 103,480 (1 78,892) 2,913,228 
Buildings and Improvements ...... ... ... ...... .. 10,136,986 10,136,986 
Vehicles ............................................ 1,298,444 29,607 31,086 (594,922) 702,043 

Subtotal ...................................... 79,315,699 399,180 31,086 (773,814) 78,909,979 

Accumulated Depreciation: 
Water & Sewer Mains ......... ...... ... ... ...... .. 15,527.149 2,586.633 18,113,762 
Machinery & Equipment .......................... 2,686,265 106,462 (149,123) 2,643,604 
Buildings and Improvements .................... 3,428,324 375,261 3,803,585 
Vehicle 1,079,826 46,501 29,453 (486,252) 610,622 

Subtotal ...................................... 22,721,564 3,114,857 29,453 (635,375) 25,171,593 

Net capital Assets being depreciated ... ... ......... ... 56,594,135 (2,715,677) 1,633 (1 38,439) 53,738,386 

Net capital assets $65,846,755 $ (1,907,104) $ 1,633 $ (138,439) $ 63,799,579 

See NOTE N for construction commitment detail as of December 31,2011 
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NOTE D - FIXED ASSETS (continued) 

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follo~s: 

Governmental Activities 

Total Governmental-Type Activities 

Business-Tvpe Activities 

. . .  ........................................................ Total Business-Type Activities 3.1 14,857 

........................................... Total Depreciation Expense $ 6,288,596 

NOTE E - DEFERRED REVENUE 

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenue that is not considered to be available to liquidate 
liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received 
but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue are as follows: 

Unavailable Unearned 
$ 16,769,145 

Special Assessment 450,058 

.............. Total Deferred Revenue $ 2,922.774 $ 17,219,203 

NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT fincludina current portions) 

Governmental long-term debt of the City is as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within 
Governmental Activities Jan. 1,201 1 Additions Reductions Dec. 31,201 1 One Year 

4.6% to 6.0% John E. Olsen Drain Project. 
Issued 7/1/96, Original lssue Amount- 
$950,000 (1) ............................................ $ 425,000 $ (50,000) $ 375,000 $ 75,000 

4.5% to 5.5% Special Assessment Bonds 
Issued 12/1/99, Original Issue Amount- 

............................................. $7,250,000 (2) 2,575,000 

2.5% State Revolving Fund Loan related to 
Storm Water Management Retrofit (3) .............. 115.813 $ 13.187 (4.000) 125,000 5,000 

2.5% State Revolving Fund Loan related to 
Storm Water Management Galloway Drain (3) ... 781,458 154,542 (35,000) 901,000 36,000 

Total Governmental Activities ............................ $ 3,897,271 $ 167,729 $ (689,000) $ 3,376,000 $ 741,000 
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

(1) The Olsen Drain project debt payment is recorded in the Storm Water Management Capital Project Fund and is funded using 
operating funds from either the General Fund or the Sewer Fund. 

(2) The special assessment bonds represent the financing of public improvements that benefit specific districts; these districts are 
specifically assessed, at least in part, for the wst  of the improvements. The City has $329,361 available in the Debt Service Funds for 
repayment of these bonds at December 31, 201 1. In addition, at year end the City has special assessment receivables of $1,978.171 
which upon collection will be used to make future bond payments. Under Michigan law, the City is secondarily liable for payment of these 
bonds. 

(3) The initial planning for the Storm Water Management (SWM) projects was conducted in 2008 and supported by S-2 grants from the 
State of Michigan. The projects were awarded Clean Water State Revolving Fund loans in the fourth quarter of 2009. The project 
construction for both projects were completed during 2011. As of year end the loan closing and final debt amortization schedule for the 
Galloway Drain project has been finalized. The City has not received the final amortization schedule for the Storm Water Management 
Retrofit; thus, the debt amounts shown below are tentative, but the total principal amount is not expected to change by more than $2,500. 
The principal repayment amounts for both projects represent 60% of the total project costs as 40% of the project cost qualified for 
principal forgiveness from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The first principal payments on both projects were paid 
in April 2011. The loan repayments are amortized over 20 years with an interest rate of 2.5%. 

Business-Tvpe Activities 

Business Long-term debt of the City is as follows: 

Balance at Balance at Due Within 
Jan. 1.201 1 Additions Reductions Dec. 31,201 1 One Year 

Business-Tv~e Activities 

2.00% to 5.0% City of Auburn Hills Bonds 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 
lssued 9/16/2009, Original lssue 
Amount-$10,400,000 ................................... $ 9,480,000 $ (1,230,000) $ 8,250,000 $ 1,265,000 

Bond Premium, Refunding Bonds Series 2009 ..... 268,698 (39,322) 229,376 

1.5% to 5.9% Oakland Macomb lnterceptor Drain 
Special Assessment Bonds lssued 7/20/2010, 
Original Issue Amounts Series 2010A (4) .......... 263,444 5 541,754 

1.5% to 5.9% Oakland Macomb lnterceptor Drain 
Special Assessment Bonds lssued 7/20/2010, 
Original issue Amounts Series 20108 (4) .......... 221,495 

2.5% Oakland Macomb lnterceptor Drain 
State Revolving Fund Loans lssued 12/16/2011, 
Original Issue Amounts Series 2011A (5) .......... 

2.5% State Revolving Fund Loans related to 
Sanitaly Sewer Rehabilitation (6) .............. 1,132,780 65,916 (49,000) 1,149,696 49,696 

Total Business-Type Activities ........................... 11,366,417 773,353 (1,324,603) 10,815,167 1,355,721 

Grand Total-All Primary Government Long-Term 

Debt (Including Current Portion) ...................... $15,263,688 $ 941,082 $ (2,013,603) $ 14,191,167 5 2,096.721 

(4) During 2009, Macomb and Oakland counties jointly established the Oakland-Macomb lnterceptor Drain - Drainage District (OMID), an 
inter-county drainage district, under Chapter 21 of the Drain Code. The OMiD was created to acquire, operate, and maintain the Oakland- 
Macomb lnterceptor (OMI); title to the OM1 was transferred from the City of Detroit to the OMlD as part of a settlement agreement with the 
City of Detroit reached in May of 2009. The OMlD apportioned the responsibility to pay the debt required to finance this project to the 
participating cities, townships, and villages located in the two counties. The OMlD bond debt will be amortized over a 20 year period with 
an interest rate of 2.5%. 
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NOTE F - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

(5) In December of 2011, additional bonds (Series 2011A) were issued through the state's revolving fund loans for Contract 3-Segment 2 
of the OMlD project. Based on expenditures through the 201 1 year end, the City recorded debt of $165,683; it is estimated that the City's 
share of the total debt to finance this portion of the OMlD project will be approximately $1,036,000, Interest related payments are 
estimated at $19,400 to $25,900 in 2012 through 2014 with a principal payment of approximately $40.600 beginning in 2014. Because 
the project started at the end of 2011 and will not be complete for about 2 years, the debt amortization schedule is not complete and the 
principal and interest amounts related to this debt are not included in the below table. 

(6) The principal repayment amounts for the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation project 60% of the total project costs as 40% of the project cost 
qualified for principal forgiveness from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009. The first principal payment on the projects 
was paid in April 2011. The loan repayments are amortized over 20 years with an interest rate of 2.5%. 

Principal 
741.000 

Total Governmental ...................... 3,376,000 

Business-Tvpe Activities: 
2012 ............................ 

Total Business-Type ...................... 10,476,258 1,755,099 12,231.357 

Total Primaw Government 
2012 2,096,026 
2013 2,167,151 
2014 2,253,307 

2015 .......................................................... 1,619,465 
1,680,786 
4,035,523 

Total Primary Government .............. $ 13,852,258 

By statute, the City general obligation debt is restricted to 10% of the equalized value of all property in the City. Certain obligations, such 
as special assessment debt, are not subject to this limitation. At December 31, 2011 the City's debt limit amounted to $189,630,188 and 
indebtedness subject to the limitation aggregated $8,625,000. 

Defeased Debt-In 1999, the Building Authority defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to 
provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased 
bonds are not included in the general purpose financial statements. At December 31, 2011, $8,175,000 of bonds outstanding is 
considered defeased. 
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NOTE G - INDIVIDUAL FUND INTERFUND RECEIVABLE AND PAYABLE BALANCES 

The composition of interfund balances is as follows: 

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund Amount 
Internal Service - Retiree Health Care General Fund $ 40,187 

1,148 
916 
305 

2,671 
........................................ 800 

Afi 077 

Water and Sewer (Long-term advance) Fieldstone Golf Club ........................................... $ 2,263,986 
Internal Service - Fleet General Fund .................................................... 1,996 
Water and Sewer General Fund .................................................... 300,000 

2,565,982 

Total Due from I to Other Funds. 

These balances result from the time lag between dates that services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are 
recorded in the accounting system, and payments between funds are made. Amounts due from the Trust and Agency Fund are included 
in cash and investments on the balance sheet andlor statement of net assets. 

NOTE H - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

Interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements are comprised of the following: 

Fund Transferred From Fund Transferred To Amount 
General Fund Local Streets ..................................................... $ 925,000 

Fieldstone Golf Club ........................................... 1,561,314 
Total General Fund ....................................... 2,486,314 

...................................... Major Streets Fund Water and Sewer Funds 65,052 

Total ......................... $ 2,551,366 

The transfer from the General fund ($925.000) to the Local Street fund was necessary to supplement Act 51 resources provided by 
the State of Michigan for the maintenance of local roads. The transfer from Major Streets ($65,052) to the Water and Sewer fund 
represents a repayment by the Major Streets for monies provided for a road project in 1996. The transfer from the General fund to 
the Fieldstone Golf Club for $1,561,314 was provided to support its operations and meet the City's deficit elimination plan for the 
golf club. 

NOTE I - RETIREMENT PLANS 

Defined Benefit Plan 

Plan Description -The City contributes to a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. This plan was available to all full-time 
employees hired prior to 1998, but is no longer available to new employees. The system provides retirement, disability and death 
benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The plan is administered through the City of Auburn Hills Pension Board. Due to 
its nature, the plan does not issue an annual financial statement, either as a stand-alone financial report, or by inclusion in the 
report of a public employee retirement system or another entity. Currently, the plan has 155 members (including active 
employees, terminated employees whose benefits are deferred until reaching retirement age, and retired employees and where 
applicable their beneficiaries). 

Contributions - Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due. Employer contributions to 
the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investment manager fees and bank 
custodial charges related to the plan are financed through investment earnings. Other administrative costs are financed by the 
General fund of the City. 
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EXHIBIT A-14 

Fundinn Policy - The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these employees was established by negotiation with 
three ~ollective bargaining units. The plan required a contribution of 21.97% of gross wages for 2011. The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Pension Cost - For the year ended December 31, 2011, the City's annual pension cost of $1,192,369 was equal to the 
City's required contribution of $795,296, less interest of $845,721 on the net pension asset, plus an annual required contribution 
adjustment in 2011 for $1,242,794. The City's actual contribution for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $1,096,157. The 
annual required contribution was determined as part of an actuarial valuation at December 31, 2010, using the aggregate cost 
method. 

Significant actuarial assumptions used include (a) an investment rate of return of 7.5%. (b) projected salary increase of 5% per 
year compounded annually, (c) postretirement benefit increases of 2.5% (5% per year for eligible members), and (d) inflation of 5% 
per year. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility over a four- 
year period. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis. 

Three vear trend information is as follows: 

Annual Pension Cost 

As of December 31 

2011 2010 - 2009 
. $ 1.192.369 $ 1.487.804 $ 2.037.692 . . . . 

........ Percentage of Annual Pension Cost Contributed 91.9% 103.6% 79.8% 
............................................... Net Pension Asset $ (1 1,180,068) $ (1 1,276,280) $ (1 1,223,143) 

Actuarial Valuation 
December 31. December 31. December 31. ~ ~ ~~~ ~~ 

2010 2009 2008 
Actuarial Value of Assets ....................................... $ 40,067,153 $ 35,442,269 $ 28,953,896 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (Aggregate) ..................... 43,094,123 41,446,950 39,912,676 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ........................ 3,026,970 6,004,681 10,958.780 

93.0% 85.5% 72.5% 
3,747,622 4,044,637 4,441,536 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued 
Percentage of Covered Payroll ............................ 80.8% 148.5% 246.7% 

For the year ended December 31,2011, the City's annual pension cost and net pension asset for the current year is: 

Annual Required Contribution ................................ $ 795.296 
ARC Adjustment .................................................. 1,242,794 
Interest on Net Pension Asset ................................ (845,721) 

Annual Pension Cost ............................................ 1,192,369 
. . 

Contr~but~ons made .............................................. 1.096.157 

Decrease I (Increase) in Net Pension Asset .............. 96,212 

Net Pension Asset Beginning of the Year .................. (1 1,276,280) 

.......................... Net Pension Asset End of the Year $ (1 1,180,068) 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The City's first defined contribution plan was established in 1985 as a complementary plan to the defined benefit pension plan. The 
International Citv Manaaers Association (ICMAI administers the olan. and the Citv Council has authoritv over olan ~rovisions and - . . 
contribution re4irements. This defined'contr;bution pension plan is limited to kmp~oyees who are active, 'retired, or deferred 
participants in the defined benefit pension plan. It is not available to employees hired after January 1, 2M)O. In a defined 
contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. At December 31, 2011, 
there were 41 active employee participants. The City is required to contribute between 4% of total salaries for employee 
participants who contribute 3%. Employees may contribute up to 100% of their salaries not to exceed amounts limited by statute. 
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NOTE I - RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

The City established another defined contribution plan in 1998 to provide an alternative to the defined benefit plan. The 
International City Managers Association (ICMA) administers the plan, and the City Council has authority over plan provisions and 
contribution requirements. The defined contribution pension plan is the only plan available to employees hired after January 1, 
2000. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. At 
December 31, 201 1, there were 163 active employee participants. The City is required to contribute between 9% and 12% of total 
salaries. Employees may contribute up to 100% of their salaries not to exceed amounts limited by statute. 

In accordance with these requirements, for both plans the City contributed $916.320 during the current year and employees 
contributed $737,903. Employees are vested after five years of service in each plan. Plan provisions and contribution 
requirements are established by the City Council and collective bargaining and may be amended. 

Other Post--Employment Benefits 

Plan Descridion - The City contributes to a single-employer defined benefit retiree health care plan. The City provides retiree - 
health care benefits to eligible former City Council members and retired employees through the Retiree Health Care Special 
Revenue fund and the City of Auburn Hills Retiree Health Care Plan. In 1997, the City started a formal method to pre-fund post 
retirement health care benefits. In 1999, the City began using an actuarial recommended percent of payroll to contribute to the 
Retiree Health Care fund. In April of 2006, the City adopted a Retiree Health Care Plan and created a trust account with a local 
bank acting as the custodian for the contributed funds. The trust is administered through the City of Auburn Hills Retiree Health 
Care Board. Due to its nature, the plan does not issue an annual financial statement, either as a stand-alone financial report, or by 
inclusion in the report of public employee post retirement system or another entity. 

The City provides health care benefits in accordance with labor contracts and personnel policies. There were 62 retirees (122 
including their spouses and dependents) eligible for health care benefits as of December 31, 201 1. In addition, there are currently 
148 active employees that may qualify for receiving retiree health care benefits in the future. The City includes pre-Medicare 
retirees and their eligible dependents in its insured health care plan. The City purchases Medicare supplemental insurance for 
retirees eligible for Medicare. With only a few exceptions, retirees receiving City paid health care benefits are currently not required 
to make contributions toward the health insurance premiums. Expenditures for post-employment health care benefits are 
recognized as the insurance premiums become due and are currently paid through a special revenue fund, not from the prefunding 
trust. During 201 1, the City paid $841,681 for post-employment health care premiums for eligible retirees. Administrative costs are 
paid by the plan with employer contributions. The retiree health care plan has only ever been offered to full-time employees and is 
now closed to full-time employees in all City employee units with the exception of the bargaining unit for the Police Patrol and 
Service Officers. 

Fundina Policy - The obligations to contribute to and maintain the retiree health plan for these employees are established by 
negotiation with three collective bargaining units. During 2011 the City made contributions to the prefunding Trust that were 
approximately 11.1% of the gross wages for eligible employees in 2011. The Trust has a fund balance of $10,357,672 as of 
December 31, 201 1. During the current year, the City contributed $385,000 to the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund in addition to the 
health care premiums paid for qualified retirees and their dependents. 

Fundina Proaress - For the year ended December 31, 201 1, the City has estimated the cost of providing retiree health care 
benefits through an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2010. The valuation computes an annual required contribution, which 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. 

This valuation's computed contribution and actual funding are summarized as follows: 

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

Annual Required Contribution ................................. 
ARC Adjustment .................................................. 38,617 32,787 25,474 
Interest on the prior yeafs net OPE6 obligation ......... (55,161) (46,832) (36,388) 

Annual OPEB cost ............................................. 1,049,126 1,205,608 1,381,733 
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NOTE I - RETIREMENT PLANS -Other Post-Employment Benefits (continued) 

Amounts contributed: 

Advance funding ............................................... (385,000) (625,000) (800,000) 
Payment of current premiums (age-adjusted) .......... (841,681) (732,024) (771,635) 

Total Employer Contributions ................................. (1,226,681) (1,357.024) (1,571,635) 
Increase/(Decrease) in net OPEB obligation .............. (1 77,555) (151,416) (1 89,902) 

OPEB asset - beginning of the year ......................... (1,002,909) (851,493) (661,591) 

.............................................. Annual OPEB costs $ 1,049,126 $ 1,205,608 $ 1,381,733 
Contributions as percent of OPEB cost ..................... 116.9% 112.6% 113.7% 

.................................................. Net OPEB asset $ (1,180,464) $ (1,002,909) $ (851,493) 

Three year trend information is as follows: 

Actuarial Evaluation 

December 31, December 31, December 31, 
2010 2009 2008 

Actuarial Value of Assets ....................................... $ 9,996,382 $ 8,474,422 $ 6,398,891 
Actuarial Accrued Liability (Ently Age) ...................... 19,698,363 19,509,238 18,608.721 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ........................ 9,701,981 11,034,816 12,209,830 
Funded Ratio ...................................................... 50.8% 43.4% 34.4% 
Covered Payroll ................................................... 9,591,993 10,030,044 10,277,634 
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a 

Percentage of Covered Payroll ............................ 101.2% 110.0% 118.8% 

Actuarial methods gncJ assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts 
and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual 
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer 
and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing 
of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation, the individual entry age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions 
include a 7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term 
investment returns on plan assets calculated based on the funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare 
cost trend rate of 5.0%. Both rates include a 5.0% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets used, mirrored the actual 
assets reported in the Retiree Health Care Trust fund at December 31, 2010. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percent of 
projected payroll over 30 years and added to the computed normal cost to determine the total contribution rate. 

The City provides to employees ineligible for the defined benefit retiree health care plan an alternative defined contribution Retiree 
Health Savings (RHS) Plan. ICMA Retirement Corporation administers the plan and the City Council has authority over plan 
provisions and contribution requirements. The RHS plan is mandatory for all of the City's new full-time employee hired after 
December 31. 2011. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment 
earnings. At December 31, 2011, there were 12 active employee participants. The City is required to contribute 3% of total 
salaries while employees must contribute either 3% of their salaries for the administration group or 5% for the participants in the 
Fire, ASFCME, and the Police Command, Detective, and Patrol units not to exceed amounts limited by statue. In accordance with 
these requirements, the City contributed $17,460 during the current year, and employees contributed $21,141. All employee units 
are vested affer 10 years with the exception of the Fire unit which is vested after 5 years with the City. Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements are established by the City Council and collective bargaining and may be amended. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT A-14 

NOTE J -RISK MANAGEMENT. CONTINGENCIES, AND COMMITMENTS 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions and employee injuries (workefs 
compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The City has purchased commercial insurance for most of these 
potential risks. In 2004, the City became self insured for property damage to City vehicles under $75,000. Settled claims relating to the 
commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past seven years. 

Under provisions of a contractual agreement signed in 1995 between the City and the Cardell Corporation, the City received a cash 
advance during 201 1 in the amount of $242,596 to provide operating funds for the Fieldstone Golf Club Fund. A total of $2,920,262 in 
cash advances have been received from the Cardell Corporation or its successor corporation (Molex Global Transportation) under the 
provisions of this contractual agreement. Repayment of this advance is only required when the Fieldstone Golf Club Fund reaches a 
specified cash balance. Because repayment of this advance is required only after the Fieldstone Golf Club Fund reaches specific cash 
balance levels, these advances have been recorded as revenue in the Fieldstone Golf Club Fund. 

The City is aware of several asserted claims. It is the opinion of the City that any material future liability arising from these claims would 
be within the limits of the City's insurance coverage. No provision has been made in the accompanying basic financial statements for 
potential liability, if any, that may arise from these suits. 

NOTE K - PROPERTY TAXES 

The City property tax is levied each December 1 on the taxable valuation of property located in the City as of the preceding December 31. 
On December 1, the property tax attachment is an enforceable lien on property and is payable by the last day of the next Febmary 
following. Taxable values are established annually by the City and are equalized by the County. The 2010 taxable valuation of the City 
totaled approximately $2,036 million of which approximately $215 million is captured by the Tax Increment Financing Authority (TIFA) and 
$10.7 million by the Brownfield Authority. The City property tax levy for 2010 (which was collected primarily in 201 1) was composed of the 
following components: 

Maximum 
Millage Allowable Tax 

L e v  Purposes Millaae Rate Revenue 
General Operating ............................................... 2.1100 2.1125 $ 16,675,184 

Fire Department ............................................... 1.7604 1.7604 
Police Department ............................................ 5.9857 5.9857 

Captured Property Taxes ....................................... 3,820,923 

9.8561 NIA $ 20,496,107 

The City annually sells its delinquent real property taxes to the County which then becomes responsible for collecting the taxes and taking 
any uncollected tax parcels through the tax reversion process. The County purchases these taxes at 100% of face value, and in return 
the County is allowed to retain all interest and penalties it collects. The estimated present value of the future delinquent collections to the 
City is less than the face value that has been received because of the time value of money. During the current year, the City sold 
$1,477,732 of delinquent property taxes to the county. The actual amount paid to the City is reduced by chargebacks for uncollected 
taxes and interest related to prior year delinquent tax sales to the county. The City had chargebacks (including interest) amounting to 
$101,439 in the current year. 

NOTE L - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES 

The City of Auburn Hills has five component units. The five units consist of three tax increment financing authorities: TlFA A, TlFA 6, and 
TlFA D, the Brownfield Authority and the Economic Development Corporation. The financial information for the component units is in 
Exhibits A-I2 and A-13. 

Unearned Revenue 
Property taxes levied in December 201 1 that will be recognized as revenue in 2012 in the amount of $2,514,747 are shown as unearned 
revenue. 

Cash and Cash Eauivalents 

The cash and cash equivalents of the City's components units reflected in the financial statement consist of deposits, certificates of 
deposits, and bank investment pools and are shown in detail in Note C. The bank investment pools are regulated by the Michigan 
Banking Act, and the fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 
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NOTE L -COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES (continued) 

No Commitment Debt 

Excluded from the component unit Long-Term Debt are revenue bonds issued by the Economic Development Corporation to acquire and 
lease property to third parties. The revenue bonds issued are payable solely from the net revenue derived from the respective leases and 
are not a general obligation of the City. After these bonds are issued, all financial activity is taken over by the paying agent. The bonds 
and related lease contracts are not reflected in the City's financial statements. As of December 31, 2011, there were 5 series of 
Economic Development Bonds outstanding. The aggregate principal amount outstanding could not be determined. However, their 
original issue amounts totaled $16,850,000. 

Propertv and Eauipment 

The following table summarizes the changes in the fixed assets of the component units: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Balance at Deletions & Balance 

Jan. 1,201 1 Additions Adiustments Dec. 31. 2011 

TIFA 85-A (Land) ................................................................... $ 6,015,341 
TlFA 86-D (Land) ................................................................. 2,017,211 
TlFA 85-A (Construction in Progress) ......................................... 22,886 377,011 
TlFA 86-6 (Construction in Progress) 
TlFA 86-D (Construction in Progress) ........................................ 

Subtotal ............................................................. 8,055,438 377,011 8,432,449 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
TIFA 85-A (Land Improvements) ............................................... 2,229,775 419,870 2,649,645 

17,046,696 17,046,696 
40,338 507,566 547,904 

233,789 304,789 538,578 
1,415,206 1,415,206 
3,050,800 3,050,800 

TIFA 86-D (Road 4,591,641 374.117 4,965,758 
2,253,883 2.253.883 

TIFA 86-D (Buildi ...................................... 20,172,960 20.172.960 
TIFA 86-6 (Water and Sewer Mains) ......................................... 585,234 585.234 
TIFA 86-0 (Water and Sewer Mains) ......................................... 361,648 361,648 
TIFA 85-A (Furniture and Equipment) ........................................ 14,399 14,399 
TIFA 86-D (Furniture and Equipment) ........................................ 248,253 248,253 

Subtotal 1,606,342 53,850,964 

Balance at Deletions B Balance 
Accumulated depreciation Jan. 1.2011 Additions Adiustments Dec. 31.2011 

455,101 112,431 567,532 
TlFA 85-A (Roads 3,791,592 426,167 4,217,759 

1,008 8,361 9,369 
TlFA 85-A (Water and Sewer Mains) ......................................... 2.338 7,724 10,062 

TlFA 85-8 (Land Improvements) ............................................... 138,448 70.760 209,208 
TIFA 86-B (Roads 51 5,236 100,996 616.232 
TlFA 86-D (Roads 216,085 127,910 343.995 
TIFA 86-6 (Water ......................................... 11,576 11,705 23,281 
TIFA 86-D (Water and Sewer Mains) ......................................... 9,243 7,233 16,476 
TIFA 85-D (Land Improvements) 185,492 88,539 274,031 
TIFA 86-D (Buildings & Improvements) ................................... 3,330,740 504,324 3,835,064 
TlFA 85-A (Furniture and Equipment) ........................................ 3,142 1 ,I 78 4,320 

TIFA 86-D (Furniture and Equipment) ...................................... 196,975 28,132 225,107 
Subtotal 1,495,460 10,352,436 

Net Capital Assets being depreciated ........................................ 43,387.646 11 0,882 43,498,528 

Net Capital Asset $ 51,443,084 $ 487,893 $ - $ 51,930,977 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT A-14 

NOTE M -CONSTRUCTION CODE FEES 

The City oversees building construction, in accordance with the State's construction code act, including inspection of building construction 
and renovation to ensure compliance with the building codes. The City charges fees for these services. Beginning January 1, 2000, the 
law requires that collection of these fees be used only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs. A 
summary of the current year activity and cumulative shortfall since January 1. 2000 is presented as follows: 

Shortfall at December 31 201 $ (4,782,622) 
Building Permit Revenue 700,709 
Related Expenses: 

Direct Costs (Building & Community Development) ............................. 790,678 
Estimated Indirect Cost 

Total Construction Code Expenditure 

Cumulative Shortfall at December 31,201 1 

NOTE N -CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS AS OF DECEMBER 31.2011 

The City has active construction projects at year-end. The active projects include the Downtown Parking Garage which is being financed 
by the City's TlFA A district. In addition, the City is a participant in the Oakland Macomb lnterceptor Drain (OMID) project that has three 
components that are being financed through separate bond issuances. The City's share of the assessments for each component of the 
OMlD project is 3.0359%. The status of the projects as of December 31, 201 1 is as follows: 

Fund Cateqory 
Component Units Fund 

Amount Spent Remaining Estimated Total 
as of 12/31/2011 Commitment Proiect Cost 

TlFA 85-A - Downtown Parking Garage ............................. $ 300,395 $ 4,471,712 $ 4.772.107 
Total Component Units Funds ................................ 300,395 4,471,712 $ 4,772,107 

Proprietary Fund 
Sewer . Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drain 2010 Series A... 805,198 56,848 662,046 
Sewer . Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drain 2010 Series B... 215,214 215,214 
Sewer - Oakland-Macomb Interceptor Drain 2011 Series A,.. 165,663 870,542 1,036,225 

Total Proprietaty Funds ................................... 1,186,095 927.390 2,113,485 

Total All Major Active Projects ................................ $ 1,486,490 $ 5,399.1 02 $ 6,885,592 

NOTE 0 -SPECIAL ITEM -GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENTS 

An analysis of the respective usage of the City's internal service fund - Fleet Management resulted in a revised allocation that shifted 
more of the operations to the funds in the governmental activities and less to the funds in the business activities. The impact of the 
revised allocation on both the governmental activities and the business activities of the City is shown as a special item on Exhibit A-2. 

NOTEP-FUTURESTATEMENTISSUANCES -GOVERNMENTALACCOUNTlNGSTANDARDSBOARDlGASBl 

GASB issued Statement No. 60. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements in November 2010. This 
Statement addresses financial reporting related to service concession arrangements which are a type of public private or public 
partnership. An SCA is an arrangement between a transferor (a government) and an operator (whether a government or nongovernment) 
in which the transferor conveys to an operator the right and relation obligation to provide services through the use of infrastructure or 
another public asset in exchange for significant consideration and the operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties. 
The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted, during the City's 2012 fiscal 
year. 

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus. This pronouncement, which is an 
amendment to Statement 14 and Statement 34, modifies certain requirements for inclusion of component units in the financial reporting 
entity. This Statement also amends the criteria for reporting components units as if they were part of the primary government (that is, 
blending) in certain circumstances. Lastly, the Statement also clarifies the reporting of equity interests in legally separate organizations. 
The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted, during the City's 2013 fiscal 
year. 



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT A-14 

NOTE P - FUTURE STATEMENT ISSUANCES - GASB (continued) 

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and 
AlCPA Pronouncements, was issued in December 2010. This Statement incorporates into GASB literature certain accounting and 
financial reporting guidance issued on or before November 30, 1989 that is included in FASB Statements and Interpretations, APB 
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the AlCPA Committee on Accounting Procedure. The City is currently evaluating the 
impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted, during the City's 2012 fiscal year. 

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, was 
issued by the GASB in June 201 1 and will be effective for the City's 2012 calendar year. The statement incorporates deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, as defined by GASB Concepts Statement No. 4, into the definitions of the required 
components of the residual measure of net position, formerly net assets. This statement also provides a new statement of net position 
format to report all assets, deferred oufflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position. Once implemented, 
this statement will impact the format and reporting of the balance sheet at the government-wide level and also at the fund level. 

In March 2012, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, which is required to be 
implemented for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. Statement No. 65 establishes accounting and 
financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred oufflows and inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities. This Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statement 
elements deferred oufflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Statement No. 65 will be implemented for the City's 2013 
fiscal year. 
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C I N  OF AUBURN HILLS EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN AND 
RETIREE HEALTH CARE TRUST 
ANALYSIS OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit B-I 

Actuarial Actuarial 

$ 40,067,153 $ 43,094,123 z $ 3,026,970 93.0% $ 3,747,622 

RETIREE HEALTH CARE TRUST 

$ 9,996.382 $ 19,698,363 $ 9,701,981 50.7% $ 9,591,993 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN 

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional 
information as of December 31, 2010. the latest actuarial valuation. follows: 

Actuarial Cost Metho Aggregate Cost Method 

Amortization Metho Level Percent of Payroll. Closed 

Remaining Amortization Perio Expected Future Woking Lifetime 

Asset Valuation Method Market Value 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Cost of Living Adju 
5.00% For eligible members 

Wage and Medical lnflatio 

z Actuarial accrued liability based on entry age for comparison to prior years. 

ClTY OF AUBURN HILLS EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN AND 
RETIREE HEALTH CARE TRUST 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit B-2 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EMPLOYEE PENSION PLAN 

Payments 
Fiscal Annual 
Year Valuation Required Percent 

Ending Date Contribution Contributed 

12/31/2011 12/31/2010 $ 795.296 137.8% 

12/31/2010 12/31/2009 1,123,301 137.2% 

12/31/2009 12/31/2008 1,699.843 95.6% 

12/31/2008 12/31/2007 1,601,259 497.3% 

12/31/2007 12/31/2006 1,502,180 104.1% 

12/31/2006 12/31/2005 1,384,529 108.5% 

RETIREE HEALTH CARE TRUST 

12/31/2011 12/31/2010 $ 1,065,670 183.8% 

12/31/2010 12/31/2009 1,219.653 128.9% 

1213 1/2009 12/31/2008 1,392,647 112.9% 

12/31/2008 12/31/2007 1,235,544 333.5% 

RETIREE HEALTH CARE TRUST 

The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated. Additional 
information as of December 31,2009, the latest actuarial valuation, follows: 

..................................... Actuarial Cost Method Individual Entry Age 

....................................... Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll. Open 

...................................... Amortization Period 30 Yean 

................................... Asset Valuation Method Market Value 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Returnllnterest Rate .................... 7.50% 
Projected Salary Increases .......................... 5.00% 
Wage and Medical Inflation ........................ 5.00% 

See Exhibit A-14, Notes to Financial Statements 



NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

The City employs the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial Statements: 

1) Prior to the first Monday in August. City Departments, in conjunction with the Finance Office, prepare and submit their 
proposed operating budgets for the year beginning January 1 to the City Manager. Budgets are prepared for almost all funds 
of the City including the General Fund, special revenues funds, capital projects funds, internal service funds, and enterprise 
funds. No budget is prepared for the agency fund. 

2) The City Manager compiles and reviews such budget requests and then prepares recommendations and submits them to the 
Council on or before September 1st of each year. 

3) A Public Hearing is conducted to obtain taxpayers' comments. 

4) Not laterthan the Rnt Monday in November, the budget is legally enacted through Council passage of the budget resolutions. 

5) Afler the budget is adopted, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of a department or fund must be approved by the 
City Council. 

The budget is adopted by the City Council on an activity (individual department) basis for the General Fund and at the fund total level 
for all funds; expenditures at this level in excess of amounts budgeted are a violation of Michigan law. A comparison of actual results of 
operation to the General Fund and to the budgets of other major special revenue funds are included in the required supplementary 
information. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end; encumbrances are not included as expenditures or liabilities. The amount 
of encumbrances outstanding at December 31, has not been calculated. 

Budgets shown were prepared on the same modified accrual basis used to reflect actual results. The budget has been prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), except that operating transfers and loan proceeds have been 
included in the "revenue" and "expenditure" categories, rather than as "other financing sources (uses)" for all funds except the General 
Fund. 

Significant excesses of expenditures over appropriations in individual major funds are presented below: 

Excess 
Expenditures 

Major Roads $ 80,908 

Local Roads 84,993 
General Fund -Capital Improvements 927,654 

The excess expenditures in the Major Road and Local Road funds are primarily attributable to a greater emphasis on in-house road 
repairs and a more aggressive maintenance program with outside contractors while major capital street improvement projects remained 
less than $300,000 compared to $1.5 million in 2008. 

The excess expenditures in the General Fund Capital lmprovements are attributable to the Forester Square special assessment road 
project that was not approved by the City Council until after the budget was adopted. Expenditures on the road project through 
December 31, 201 1, including a retainage amount, were $927,654. 

The Fieldstone Golf Club has an unrestricted net deficit of $1,625,927 at December 31, 2011. The City is operating under a deficit 
elimination plan approved by the State of Michigan at the end of 2009. The approved plan anticipates that the Fieldstone Golf Club will 
eliminate its unrestricted net deficit at the end of the City's fiscal year ending December 31, 2013. In addition, the General Fund of the 
City will continue to transfer funds to support the annual operations of the golf club through the 2017 fiscal year. The bond debt 
associated with the purchase and development of the golf club will be extinguished in 2017, and at such time, it is expected that the golf 
club will be able to generation net income from its operations in subsequent fiscal years. 

Other than the following budget amendment, the 2011 budget was not amended: Budget Transfer Amendment 
Amended 

General fund transfer to Golf Course Fund $ 861,514 $ 1,711,514 

Budget transfer to Golf Course Fund increased in order to support golf fund operations and to ensure that the financial improvement in 
the Golf Course's unrestricted fund balance remained in compliance with the City's deficit elimination plan approved by the State of 
Michigan. 



NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued) 

GASB and General Fund Reporting 

In order to comply with GASB 54 reporting requirements, six funds repolted as special revenue funds or capital project funds in the prior 
year have been consolidated into General Fund for the City's 2011 financial statements as shown in Exhibits A-3 and A-5. Although 
these six funds have been consolidated with the General Fund, the details of the General Fund's actual revenues and expenditures as 
shown on Exhibits B-3 and 8-4 only includes the General Fund activity related to its 2011 adopted budget and excludes the six funds 
whose 2011 adopted budget was approved as a separate fund. The following summary presents the consolidation of the General Fund 
revenues and expenditures which are reflected on Exhibit A-5. 

2011 Actual Amounts 

Revenues Expenditures 
General Fund (per Exhibits 8-3 and B $ 11,527,803 $ 10,190,228 
Additional funds not part of the Genera dopted Budget, but are included in the 
General Fund as required by GASB 54 (Exhibit A-5) 

Police Departmen 10,251,851 8,986,959 
2,930,658 3,358,969 

16,640 48,297 
100,102 115,730 

47 25,547 
Storm Water Management Improvement ......... ...... ... ... ... ... ... ... ......... ... ... ... ... ..... 97.231 432,501 

Total Consolidated General Fund Actual Revenues and Expenditures per Exhibit A-5 $ 24,924,132 $ 23,158,231 

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES PER EXHIBIT A-5 $ 1,765,901 



MAJOR 

FUNDS 



MAJOR FUNDS 
FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

General Fund-The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial resources 
of the City which are not required to be accounted for in other funds. 

Maior Departments in General Fund - not budaeted as part of the General Fund (see note to RSI paae 58) 

Police-The Police fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the City of Auburn Hills Police Department. 
This fund is financed primarily from a property tax millage. 

Fire-The Fire fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures of the City of Auburn Hills Fire Department. This 
fund is financed primarily from a property tax millage. 

Park lmprovement-This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures relating to improvements made to City 
parks. This fund is primarily funded through State grants combined with General Fund appropriations. 

Sidewalk lmprovement-This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures relating to the constmction and 
replacement of City sidewalks and bike paths. This fund is primarily funded through General Fund appropriations. 

Storm Water Management-This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures relating to Storm Water 
Management projects in the City. This fund is funded primarily through General Fund appropriations, transfers from 
City funds, and grants (generally from federal sources). 

Street lmprovement-This fund is used to account for the revenues specifically designated for street improvements in 
the City. This fund is funded primarily through General Fund appropriation as well as the balance of bond proceeds 
specifically for street improvements. 

Other Maior Funds 

Major Streets-This fund is used to account for the revenues received from the State of Michigan under Act 51 which are 
specifically earmarked for construction and maintenance of roads designated as major streets in the City. 

Local Streets-This fund is used to account for the revenues received from the State of Michigan under Act 51 which are 
specifically earmarked for construction and maintenance of roads designated as local streets in the City. 

Brown Road Special Assessment Debt-This fund is used to account for the funding and payment of principal and interest 
on debt issued in 1999 for the paving of Brown Road adjacent to the Auburn Mile Development. Property tax 
special assessments are made to the businesses in this development. 



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -- GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit B-3 

Actual 
Original Final Over (Under) 
Budqet Budqet Actual Amended Budaet 

OPERATING REVENUE 

Property taxes-Undesignated ........................ $ 3,386,224 $ 3,386,224 $ 4,257,190 $ 870,966 
Tax collection fee ........................................ 798,831 798,831 748,742 (50.089) 

TOTALS 4,185,055 4,185,055 5,005,932 820.877 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 
300,000 300.000 376,883 76,883 
72,000 72,000 96,326 24,326 

Heat, vent, & AC permits .............................. 42,000 42,000 70,431 28,431 
Plumbing permits ........................................ 22,000 22,000 27,487 5,487 
Business licenses and permits ....................... 43,000 43,000 34,656 (8,344) 

15,000 15,000 20,998 5,998 
28,130 28,130 60,261 32,131 

TOTALS 522,130 522,130 687,042 164,912 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
Engineering services ................................... 100,000 100,000 32,411 (67,589) 
Plan review fees.. ....................................... 110,000 110,000 118,488 8,488 
Zoning and plat fees .................................... 57,000 57.000 38,444 (18,556) 
Recreation programs and activities ................. 122,100 122,100 147,910 25,810 
Senior citizen programs and activities ............. 47,700 47,700 23.868 (23,832) 

TOTALS 436,800 436,800 361.121 (75,679) 

GRANT SOURCES 
.. 1,643 1,643 

........................ 45,775 45,775 34,331 (1 1,444) 
State shared revenue sharing ........................ 1,293,934 1,293,934 1,552,790 258,856 

TOTALS 1,339,709 1,339,709 1,588,764 249,055 

USE OF MONEY & PROPERTY 
Interest revenue .......................................... 121,903 121,903 86,974 (34,929) 
Building rental 530,357 530.357 538.920 8,563 

652,260 652.260 625,894 (26.366) 

ADMINISTRATIVE & INTERFUND CHARGES 
General administrative charges ...................... 1,538.351 1,538,351 746,552 (791,799) 
Dep.of Public Service admin. Charges ............. 689.789 689,789 482,053 (207,736) 
Interfund charges ........................................ 2,041,365 2,041,365 893.775 (1,147,590) 

TOTALS 4,269,505 4,269,505 2,122,380 (2,147,125) 

OTHERGENERALREVENUE 
230,896 230,896 472,676 241,780 

0 0 314,867 314,867 
306,000 306,000 349,127 43,127 

TOTALS 536,896 536,896 1,136,670 599,774 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 11,942,355 $ 11,942,355 $ 11,527,803 $ (414.552) 



SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS AND FUND BALANCE 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -- GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT B-4 

Original Final Original Final 

LEGISLATIVE 
$ 242,276 $ 242,276 $ 

925.000 $ 925,000 $ 

Prourietaw Funds: 
.................................. Fieldstone Golf Club 

TOTAL TRANSFERS 

Management Information Systems ..................... 412,275 412,275 414,351 2,076 
TOTALS 4,236,700 4,236,700 4,130,515 (106,185) TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS $ 11,350,308 $ 12,200,308 $ 12,676,542 $ 476,234 

STREETS, HIGHWAYS & PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 
Capital Improvements ...................................... 0 0 927,654 927.654 

TOTALEXPENDITURESANDTRANSFERS 
COMMUNIN 8 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

TOTAL REVENUES OVER1 (UNDER) 
EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS 592,047 (257,953) (1,148.739) $ (890,786) 

......... Fund balance at the beginning of the year 
............................ 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 9,110,811 $ 8,260,811 $ 7.370.025 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

TOTALS 148,000 148,000 189,207 41,207 

DEBT SERVICE 

TOTALEXPENDITURES $ 9,481,947 $ 9,481,947 $ 10,190,228 $ 708,281 



SCHEDULEOFREVENUESANDOTHERSOURCES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL -- OTHER MAJOR FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT B-5 

Original Final 

868,468 $ 950,197 $ 

Use of money and property ............................... 

$ 872,090 $ 872,090 $ 950.263 $ 

Transfer to Wa Sewer fund ..................... 
TOTALS $ 1,009,593 $ 1,009.593 $ 1,090,501 

(140,238) $ 

LOCAL STREETS 
State sources $ 262.620 $ 262,620 $ 277.938 $ 

............................... 

$ 219,080 $ 219,080 $ 203,088 $ (15,992) 

$ 1,203,382 

(57,723) $ (70,093) 

$ 2,060,572 $ 2,060,572 $ 2,153,645 

FUNDBALANCE 
Fund balance at the beginning of the year ........... 

Fund balance at the end of the year .................... $ (40,240) $ (40,240) $ 220,933 



OTHER 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET -- NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit C-1 

Cash and investments (Note C) ........................... $ 1,308,904 $ $ 1,308,904 
Receivables: 

..................... Due from other governmental units 
Due from other funds ....................................... 
Accounts ....................................................... 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUNDBALANCES 

........................... Committted (see Exhibit D-I) 
Restricted (see Exhibit D-I) ............................. 929,296 

TOTALFUNDBALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,312,334 $ 0 $ 1,312,334 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -- NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

ClTY OF AUBURN HlLLS Exhibit C-2 

EXPENDITURES 

.................................... Management and planning 

............... elopment.. 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers to other funds 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCESOVEREXPENDITURESANDOTHERUSES 

........................... Fund balances at beginning of year 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 1,192,733 $ 0 $ 1,192,733 



NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FUND DESCRIPTIONS 

EXHIBIT C-3 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Wayne-Oakland Disposal-This fund is used to account for the receipt and subsequent disbursement of "tipping fees" 
received from the landfill operator of this landfill located in the City. 

Community Development Block Grant-This fund is used to account for the grant funds received from the Federal 
Government through Oakland County for projects benefiting low and moderate income persons or projects defined as 
having an urgent need. 

Tree Ordinance-This fund is used to account for the funds received under Ordinance 483 of the City which requires 
deposits and fees for the removal and replacement of protected species of trees. 

State and Federal Drug Forfeiture-This fund is used to account for the money and property seized by the Police 
Department from individuals involved in the use, sale and distribution of illegal drugs. 

Police Grants and Donations-This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to grants and 
donations that the Police Department received for operation of the DARE program and other associated law enforcement 

Metro Act-This fund is used to account for the revenue received from the State of Michigan to be used for right-of-way 
maintenance. 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 

Downtown Center Parking-This fund is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the construction 
and maintenance of projects related to parking in the Downtown Center. The revenues in the fund were obtained from 
setvice charges from property owners in the Downtown Center. The cash fund balance was transferred in its 
entirety during 2011 to the TlFA A fund to support the construction of a parking garage in the Downtown Center. 



COMBINING 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 



COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-NON MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT D-I  

Wayne- State a Community Police 
Metro Oakland Tree Federal Drug Development Grants and 

Act - Dis~osal  Ordinance Forfeiture Block Grant Donations 

Cash and investments (Note C) ........................ $ 333,437 $ 264,337 $ 659,633 $ 20,401 $ 13,689 $ 17,407 $ 1,308.904 

Due from other governmental units .............. 
Due from other funds ................................. 

Accounts receivable ....................................... 

TOTALASSETS 333,437 264,337 659,633 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

115,730 1,256 
579 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 295 900 116,333 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) 

263.437 
543,300 

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 333,142 263,437 543,300 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $ 333,437 $ 264,337 $ 659,633 $ 20,401 $ 17,119 $ 17,407 $ 1,312,334 



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES --SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS EXHIBIT D-2 

Wayne- State & Community Police 

Metro Oakland Tree Federal Drug Development Grants and 
Act - Disposal Ordinance Forfeiture Block Grant Donations 

Charges for services ................................. $ 242,811 $ 
Federal sources ....................................... 57,187 

5.789 

Other revenues ........................................ 

TOTAL REVENUE 53,588 242,854 5,078 

EXPENDITURES 
Current operations: 

60,935 

14,350 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,672 45,141 16,349 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 46,916 197,713 (1 1,271) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
General fund transfer ................................. 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

REVENUEANDOTHERSOURCESOVER 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 46,916 197,713 (1 1,271) 

Fund balance at beginning of year ............... 286.226 65,724 554,571 

FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 333,142 $ 263,437 $ 543,300 $ 19,145 $ 16,302 $ 17,407 $ 1,192,733 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 



BALANCE SHEET -- CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit E-I  

Downtown 

Cash and investments (Note C) 
Due from other governmental un 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Deferred revenue 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCE 
Assigned - Public Improvements 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -- CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit E-2 

Downtown 
Center 

Use of money and propert 

TOTALREVENUE 

EXPENDITURES 

Debt service: 
Principal payments 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers out to other funds ... ... .. .... ... ... ... ... ... ...... ... ... ... ... ...... ... .. 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

EXCESS OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCESOVEREXPENDITURESANDOTHERUSES 

Fund balances at beginning of yea 

FUNDBALANCESATENDOFYEAR 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 
FUND DESCRIPTION 

Fleet Management-This fund is used to account for the operations of all City vehicles and equipment 
(used primarily by the Department of Public Services) excluding Fire Department apparatus. 

Retiree Health Care-This fund is used to pay other post retirement employee benefits for qualified 
retirees. Its source of funds is from fees charged to City Departments which is based on a 
percentage of payroll for the eligible participants in the retiree health care program. 



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS -- INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
DECEMBER 31,2011 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit F-I  

Fleet Health 
Management 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and investments (Note C) ....................................... $ 3,793,328 $ 40,734 $ 3,834,062 
Receivables: 

Due from other fund 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

Less: Allowance for depreciation ..................................... 5,458,390 
TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS NET OF DEPRECIATION 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,723,422 $ 86,761 $ 4,810,183 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accrued payroll and other liabilitie 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 4,666,634 $ 86,761 $ 4,753,395 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN 
FUND NET ASSETS -- INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 

ClTY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit F-2 

Management 

OPERATING REVENUE 

Vehicle rental fees 
Charges for services.. $ 1,213,706 
Other operating incom 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Other opera ing expenses ............................................. 
Conttibution to Retiree Health Care Trust ......................... 
Depreciation and amoltization ....................................... 565,382 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUE 

CHANGEINNETASSETS 

Net assets-beginning of year ......................................... 

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR $ 4,666,634 $ 86,761 $ 4,753,395 



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,201 1 

CITY OF AUBURN HILLS Exhibit F-3 

Manasement 

NET CASH PROVIDED USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL 

Operating transfers i 
Other nonoperating 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of capital asset 

NET CASH PROVl 

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents ................................ 
Cash and cash equivalents-Beginning of year .................................. 

Cash and cash equivalentsend of yea $ 3,793,328 $ 40.734 $ 3,834,062 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH 
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income $ 225,535 $ (36,657) $ 188,878 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING INCOME TO NET 
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Depreciation and Amortization Expense .................................... 
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable ............................... 
Decrease (increase) in due from other funds .............................. 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable ................................... 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds .................................. 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and other liabilities ............ 

Total Adjustments ............................................................ 
Net cash provided by operating activities ............................... $ 737.877 $ 




